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May 30 2012

Dear Shareholders

In last years letter to you acknowledged that my main priorities had to be to strengthen the Company
in order to obtain needed new capital to ensure our ability to continue to operate in way that positively

impacts our stakeholders including our customers and communities As of the end of 2011 want

to share the great strides we have made in improving our Company and acknowledge the significant

challenges still ahead

In 2011 we have focused our attention on those issues that matter most to improve our overall financial

condition reduce the risk in our loan portfolio and improve our operational effectiveness

We have made significant improvements in our consumer product set including offering customers the

ability to open accounts online and offering rewards and cash-back for maintaining appropriate balance

levels We rebranded the company and have begun advertising on local radio to improve brand awareness

and drive new consumer and small business activity to our branches We continue to maintain strong

relationships with our municipal customers who appreciate our desire to serve the underserved population

in distressed communities In addition we have added new talented members to the senior and middle

management ranks to improve our ability to address the various business and regulatory issues we face

However the issues we face with poorly performing loan portfolio and weakness in our commercial real

estate loan portfolio continue to plague us Problem loans create an additional drain on earnings from

both writedowns and increased expenses associated with managing the loan portfolio

In 2011 we reported our third straight year of losses Although much smaller than the previous two years

the $3.6mm loss has for the first time caused our common equity to turn negative The poor performance

of our loan portfolio has caused total of $19.6 million in lost value and negatively impacts the value of

your common stock

We are working hard to hold the deterioration in the portfolio to the lowest possible levels but realize

that this strategy is not enough and therefore continue to seek additional investment capital to allow the

company to meet regulator-mandated capital levels Although this is particularly difficult message to

deliver management and the Board is confident that we will be able to raise the needed capital address

the credit quality issues as well as solve the regulatory compliance issues that currently are drag on our

overall performance We expect that we will reach significant milestones in these metrics and our overall

performance in the upcoming year

We continue to enjoy the support of our many loyal customers and shareholders as well as the support of

our regulators and are grateful to them for that support and understanding We continue to work every day

to strengthen our Bank so that we can continue to play pivotal role in our communities

On behalf of the Board of Directors management and staff thank you for your continued support

Preston Pinkett Ill

President CEO



Mission Statement

City National Bank of New Jersey minority-owned and managed
commercial bank is dedicated to building wealth and improving the

quality of life within the communities it serves by
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Maintaining stable earnings and strong asset quality while

enhancing shareholder value

Providing stimulating and challenging work environment

that encourages develops and rewards excellence
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We are also Community Development Financial Institution CDFI and have received
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Five-Year Summary

4020

24
32.60

5617

54
60.54

Dollars in thousands except per share data 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Veet-end 1a1ance Sheet data

Total assets 358442 387267 466339 494539 449748

Gtqta loans 20fl5 24495w 242 7196 232824

Allowance for loan losses 10870 10626 8650 3800 3000

I3Ve$tflflt gtities 9505 1O4$ i62401 173
Totaldeposits 299271 338551 380276 407117 394856

S1iort$fn3 po1on cs1ong46m4ejst 50tO Ol0 5QOO

Long-term debt 14200 14200 44000 46600 19800

$toodetseqit i771 ZZ$46 72
Income Statement data

3htertcqmn F544 $4 j44 29OZ 2$78

Interestexpense 4964 7407 9495 11309 14233

tfBtf8t ih$4 lQ4tQ

Other operating income

Nneit1qgseson curftg4

3124 279

a5933

2694

Income tax benefit expense 73 360 1806 50 372

Per common share data

Net loss income
per

basic share 68.36 1.87 8.28

\et loss Income per dduted share 68 36 1.87 8.09

Book value 85.50 130.10 141.04

Diidends declared 2.01 1.60 3.50

Basic aeragc number of common shares

outstantling 131320 111290 31.300 131.688 132.306

Diluted avel ae uumher common shares

uu1standit II 320 131.290 131 00 131.688 148.623

Number of common shares
outstanding at

.ear-end 131326 131290 131290 131330 131.987

inancial ratios

Return 11 a\cragc assets



Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

Dollars in thousands except per share data 2011 2010

Assets

Cash and due from banks Note 5960 7228

Federal funds sold Note 32600 13550

Interest-bearing deposits with banks 1940 3289

InvestmeM securities available for sale Note 95058 105420

Loans Note 208715 244955

Less A1Iowahc for loan osses Note LQ$70 10626

Net loans 197845 234329

Premists aid eqpipmet NoteS 2686 2974

Accrued interest receivable 1561 1933

Bak-owi4 life insurance 5920 5730

Other real estate owned 1.524 1997

0th at te

Total assets 358442 387267

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Deposits NOtes and

Demand 37379 35132

Savipgs
1I4$5 t3G663

Time 147217 172756

Total depçta
2927l 338551

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 20200 6620

Skorttersnportio of 1ongtein1debtNot ii 000
Long-term debt Note 11 14200 14200

Total ltaltWØs 367l 6437

Commitments and contingencies Note 21

Stokhldera eqoity otes 16 and 24
Preferred stock no par value Authorized 100000 shares Note 15

Serii isi dnn outstauing sbre n%011 aid 20 2Q 20Q

Series issued and outstanding 108 shares in 2011 and 2010 27 27

$eties ieI and outtfetdieg 8bat 0t aid Q1O 20 820

Preferred stock no par value perpetual noncumulative Authorized 200 shares

tles ss0ed blo tding aaai O1 a$t1ll 40 2450

Preferred stock no par value perpetual noncumulative Authorized 7000 shares

Se6otF Oedatata4g 7000 hra iltt1l nq20L 6790 610

Preferred stock no par value perpetual cumulative Authorized 9439 shares

Se8 iited atttc tstan4iq 94 iares $1n0 10S504 99O

Common stock par value $10 Authorized 400000 shares

13435Ostatçaj tedfit 2011 a20m
131326 shares outstanding in 2011 and 131290 in 2010 1345 1345

rpbas 11L5

Accumulated deficit retained earnings 3163 514

Aecnwiated her preheaiv8 ibtio 42

Treasury stock at cost 3204 common shares in 2011 and 3240 in 2010 226 228

Thtat atockhol4exs iuy 1771

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 358442 387267

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



CITY NATIONAL BANCSHARES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31

Dollars in thousands except per share data

iiieres iucoOie

Total other operating_income

PthP opetth
Salaries and other employee benefits Note 14

Ucpmy etpeNpt
Equipment expense Note

Psnl fçe

Management consulting fees

Mkett etpuse

FDIC insurance expense

tt sigtp$e
Other real estate owned expense

441otljät1on oIiiMnth1e aset

Federal Home Loan Bank advance prepayment penalty

Fout rpet1s6

Other expenses Note 12

Loss before income taxes

Net loss

oss peroisnoa sha tt 17

1158

600

257

308

4t7

989

6079

500

1749

41
1266

393

780

1570

15Q7Q

3604
73

14148

42

29

1319 1476

80

1100 71

252

130 201

2080 12

19
2314

5617 791

2011 2010 2009

16146

54

50

6668

1a56

24174

5269

14

20234

Interest and fees on loans 11294

Interest on deposits with banks 236

ap1 4td 9fl ipvst6nt sci$fl
Taxable 3623

____ ________ 246

Total interest income
_______ 15424

retefle
Interest on deposits Note 4155

dtrepp
Interest on long-term debt

_________ _____________________________
809

Tptal itiØ4expej ______ 4g64

Net interest income 10460Ot _____j4
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

____________
7446

Service charges on deposit accounts

A2M
Award income

Undistributed income from unconsolidated subsidiaries

tl8eGme I4pte 12
Net gains on securities transactions Note

Qthr mpÆea1pnW
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensive income before tax

$t thuilmt scunt1s Tdrn

5715 7670

1691

12827

3340

1822

14679

6574

4020

5822

557

$37

1369

1280

146

694

5800

L32
648

432

683

361

1240

361

558

194

298 139

3677

2368

16054

7097

7457

1639

131
6016
4806

7822

Basic 32.60 60.54 68.36

Diklte4 324O O$4 636
Basic average common shares outstanding 131320 131290 131300
DUpted tWte pothnon hates outstanding 1313211 131290

Cash dividends declared per common share 2.00

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



CITY NATIONAL BANCSHARES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes

in Stockholders Equity

Common
Stock

Retained Accumulated

Earnings Other

Preferred Accumulate Comprehensive Treasury

Stock Deficit Loss Income Stock

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Dot tars in thousands Surplus
Total

BalanceDecember3l 2008 1345 1.115 10287 16694 1.1241 225 28092

Net loss
7.822 17.822

Other comprehensive loss

nrealizcd holding gains on securities ansi ng

during the period net of tax of $12 574 -- 4.997 43197

Reclassification adjustment for losses included in

net income net tf tax tif $45 2333 2333

Total other comprehetisise toss
58

Transition adjustment for adoption of PASB ASC

320-10-65-I 1.007 11007

Proceeds trout issuance of preferred stock 9.439 9.439

Purchase of
treasury

stock 131 11

Dividends pail tin conmton stock .094 .0941

Dividends paid on preferred stock 1263 263

Dis idends aect uecl on prelerred stock tsP 1111

Balance December 31 2009 1.345 1.1 15 9.786 8.462 533 1228 31.013

Net loss 7457 7.457

Other conipruhensive loss

Unrealuied holding losses on securities arising

during the period net ol tax of S2 177 177

Transfer of held to maturity secutities to available

ftir sale at market value net of tax of $459 890 890

Rectassi ficution adjustment for gains included in net

income Inet ol tax of 8717 1.373 It .373

Total other omprehcnsive loss
181 17l

Dividends accrued on preferred
stock 49t 491

Balance December 31 2010 1.345 1115 20277 514 127 228 22.896

Net toss
.677 .677I

Other comprehensive loss

Unrealized hokling gains on securities arising

during the period net ol tax of $16213 -- .203 1.203

Reclassificatioti adjustment for gains included in

net inconse net of tax of $3363 653l 653

Total other coniprefuensise loss
13.127

Issuance of treasury stock

Dividends accrued sun preferred stock
--

1514 514

BalanceDecember3l2011 1.345 601 20791 3163 423 226 19.771



CITY NATIONAL BANCSHARES CORPORATION AND
SUBSIDIARY Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In thousands

Opr4ingacivities

Net loss

2011

3677

Year Ended December 31

2010

7457

2009

7822

Adjustments rosopeile tset lOss to net c4413 front opeta nt attkes

Depreciation and amortization

Irovisiop or losgs

Premium amortization of investment securities

Antortization of intas3gii64tet$

Net gains on sales and early redemptions of investment securities

et j331 aupgpt bales 66 inie8ment çirifs

Net gains losses on sales of loans held for sale

Net 1qgse8 god wrftdowns of othOt Osa 4tat0ne

Loans originated for sale

Peopeds from sates aOd pxiocipalpaypsett froo loans e1d for sa
Decrease in accrued interest receivable

betçgired taea

Net increase in bank-owned life insurance

tteeate iii otlafr Macta

Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities

el cash orovided bs ooer5thnt actIvities

Proceeds from maturities of investment securities held to maturity including principal

repayments and early redemptions

ltooeells frotit latas qf investment securitiit8 aall4ble .ot tale

Purchases of investment securities available for sale

Purchases Of inVdment sgot11tis 44 to itsaturity

Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned

luclnsgs ofpremises 8pdeqpipx9çnt

Net cash provided by investing activities

ilht8ncjn aethatles

Decrease in deposits

Decrease in 8cb0srowit1fa

Decrease in short-term portion of long-term debt

Ddcreate iitcreasi 1ong4ep1 dobt

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock

1sape pucthalea of treasury dlc

Dividends paid on preferred stock

Dis/ideodspaitl9ts cOin s8to1

Net cash used in financing activities
_____________________

NeUncseaae Kdedtease in casIaitd casis cqpvggpta

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Cash and
catty olvalents at td at 56ar

Cash paid received during the year

Income taxes refunds

Nwealh transacttons

Transfer of investments from held to maturity to available for sale

1gpsfgr of oant 10 other real estate ogped

Transfer of loans held for sale to loans

366 404 432

LQ14 9487 $105

152 211 17

5$ 194

989 2080 12
2833

10

13 43 427

312

196 73

372 613 250

2372

190 193 192

577 1$ 103
13580 670 70

1O64 3d4 42

39278

7782

20778

I$856O

491 743

591417

39144 183

150k

106

See accompanying notes to consolidated

Investing activities

I2etQase inpx8 Ioans net

Decrease increase terest bo

3330 23532 E993

40658

46396

1247

70718

56513

556

78731

39280 41725

15574

189

22096

2462

275

139

9565

26841

1750

2600

9439

1094

___ 2d3

23112

13595

25813

1230k

2M00

1625

M70

12308

26773

94
1279

14tI



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting and reporting policies of City National Bancshares Corporation the Corporation or CNBC and its

subsidiaries City National Bank of New Jersey the Bank or CNB and City National Bank of New Jersey Capital Trust II

conform with U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and to general practice within the banking industry In

preparing the financial statements management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and revenues and expenses for

the related periods Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates material estimate that is particularly

susceptible to significant change in the near term is the allowance for loan losses In connection with the determination of this

allowance management generally obtains independent appraisals for significant properties Judgments related to securities

valuation and impairment are also critical because they involve higher degree of complexity and subjectivity and require

estimates and assumptions about highly uncertain matters Accordingly it is reasonably possible that the Corporation may be

required to record additional provisions for loan losses and other than temporary impairment charges in future periods

Additionally significant judgment is required to determine the future realizationofdeferredtaxassets and whether valuation

allowance may be required The following is summary of the more significant policies and practices

Business

City National Bancshares Corporation primarily through its subsidiary City National Bank of New Jersey offers broad range

of lending leasing depository and related financial services to individual consumers businesses and governmental units

through seven full-service offices located in New Jersey New York City and Long Island New York CNB competes with

other banking and financial institutions in its primary market communities including financial institutions with resources

substantially greater than its own Commercial banks savings banks savings and loan associations credit unions and money

market funds actively compete for deposits and loans Such institutions as well as consumer finance and insurance companies

may be considered competitors with respect to one or more services they render

CNB offers equipment leasing services through its minority ownership interest in an unconsolidated leasing company

Principles of consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of CNBC and its wholly-owned subsidiaries All significant intercompany

accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the presentation of the Statement of Cash Flows Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and due from banks

and federal funds sold

Investment securities held to maturity and investment securities available for sale

Investment securities are designated as held to maturity or available for sale at the time of acquisition Securities that the

Corporation has the intent and ability at the time of purchase to hold until maturity are designated as held to maturity

Investment securities held to maturity are stated at cost and adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discount to

the earlier of maturity or call date using the level yield method

Securities to be held for indefinite periods of time but not intended to be held until maturity or on long-term basis are

classified as investment securities available for sale Securities held for indefinite periods of time include securities that the

Corporation intends to use as part of its interest rate sensitivity management strategy and that may be sold in response to

changes in interest rates resultant risk and other factors Investment securities available for sale are reported at fair market

value with unrealized gains and losses net of deferred tax reported as component of accumulated other comprehensive

income which is included in stockholders equity Gains and losses realized from the sales of securities available for sale are

determined using the specific identification method Premiums are amortized and discounts are accreted using the level yield

method

Investment securities classified as held to maturity or available for sale are evaluated quarterly for other-than-temporary

impairment Other-than-temporary impairment means that the securitys impairment is due to factors that could include its

inability to pay interest or dividends its potential for default and/or other factors As result of the adoption of new

authoritative guidance under ASC Topic 320 InvestmentsDebt and Equity Securities on April 2009 when held to

maturity or available for sale debt security is assessed for other-than-temporary impairment the Corporation has to first

consider whether it intends to sell the security and whether it is more likely than not that the Corporation will be

required to sell the security prior to recovery of its amortized cost basis If one of these circumstances applies to security an

other-than-temporary impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income equal to the full amount of the decline in fair

value below amortized cost If neither of these circumstances applies to security but the Corporation does not expect to

recover the entire amortized cost basis an other-than-temporary impairment loss has occurred that must be separated into two

categories the amount related to credit loss and the amount related to other factors In assessing the level of other-than



temporary impairment attributable to credit loss the Corporation compares the present value of cash flows expected to be

collected with the amortized cost basis of the security The portion of the total other-than-temporary impairment related to credit

loss is recognized in earnings while the amount related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income The total

other-than-temporary impairment loss is presented in the statement of income less the portion recognized in other

uu1pnc11U1i1v 111UII1 VY I11n UUL LU11Ly UCU11Ico
UL1icI-LlIall-LLnhnpUIaLniy lllqJallLU IL alllUlLltCu LUL uaSiS IS ICUULCU LI

reflect the portion of the total impairment related to credit loss Prior to the adoption of the new authoritative guidance total

other-than-temporary impairment losses i.e both credit and non-credit losses on debt securities were recognized through

earnings with an offset to reduce the amortized cost basis of the applicable debt securities by their entire impairment amount

To determine whether securitys impairment is other-than-temporary the Corporation considers factors that include the causes

of the decline in fair value such as credit problems interest rate fluctuations or market volatility the severity and duration of

the decline its ability and intent to hold equity security investments until they recover in value as well as the likelihood of such

recovery in the near term the intent to sell security investments or if it is more likely than not that the Corporation will be

required to sell such securities before recovery of their individual amortized cost basis less any current-period credit loss For

debt securities the primary consideration in determining whether impairment is other-than-temporary is whether or not it is

probable that current or future contractual cash flows have been or may be impaired

The Bank holds mortgage-backed securities in its investment portfolios none of which are private-label Such securities are

subject to changes in the prepayment rates of the underlying mortgages which may affect both the yield and maturity of the

securities

The Bank transferred its entire HTM portfolio to AFS in March 2010 This transfer was made in conjunction with

deleveraging program to reduce total asset levels and improve capital ratios As result purchases of securities may not be

classified as HTM until the second quarter of 2012

Loans held for sale

Loans held for sale include residential mortgage loans originated with the intent to sell Loans held for sale are carried at the

lower of aggregate cost or fair value

Loans

Loans are stated at the principal amounts outstanding net of unearned discount and deferred loan fees as well as interest

received on certain nonaccrual loans Interest income is accrued as earned based upon the principal amounts outstanding Loan

origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs as well as unearned discount are deferred and recognized over the life

of the loan revised for loan prepayments as an adjustment to the loans yield

Recognition of interest on the accrual method is generally discontinued when loan contractually becomes 90 days or more

past due or reasonable doubt exists as to the collectability of the loan unless such loans are well-secured and in the process of

collection At the time loan is placed on nonaccrual status previously accrued and uncollected interest is generally reversed

against interest income in the current period Interest on such loans if appropriate is recognized as income when payments are

received loan is returned to an accrual status when it is current as to principal and interest and its future collectability is

expected Generally this occurs after the loan has been performing for six months

The Corporation has defined the population of impaired loans to be all nonaccrual loans of $100000 or more Impaired loans of

$100000 or more are individually assessed to determine that the loans carrying value does not exceed the fair value of the

underlying collateral or the present value of the loans expected future cash flows Smaller balance homogeneous loans that are

collectively evaluated for impairment are specifically excluded from the impaired loan portfolio

Trouble debt restructured TDR loans are those loans whose terms have been modified because of deterioration of the

financial condition of the borrower to provide for reduction of interest or principal payments or both An allowance is

established for all TDR loans based on the present value of the respective loans future cash flows unless the loan is deemed

collateral dependent The majority of concessions made for TDRs involve lowering the monthly payments on the loans either

through reduction in interest rate below market rate an extension of the term of the loan or combination of the two

methods They seldom result in the forgiveness of principal or accrued interest In addition we attempt to obtain additional

collateral or guarantees when modifying such loans If the borrower demonstrates the ability to perform under the restructured

terms the loan will continue to accrue interest Nonaccruing restructured loans may be returned to accrual status when there has

been sustained period of repayment performance generally six consecutive months of payments and both principal and

interest are considered collectible TDRs are carried at balance net of any charge-offs required when the modifications to

the loan are made and the loan is determined to be TDR

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses ALLL is maintained at level determined adequate to provide for losses inherent in the loan

portfolio The allowance is increased by provisions charged to operations and recoveries of loans previously charged off and



reduced by loan charge-offs Generally losses on loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when it is believed

that the collection of all or portion of the principal balance is unlikely and the collateral is not adequate

Certain inherent but unconfirmed losses are probable within the loan portfolio The Banks operations and lending activities are

centered in urban communities which are more vulnerable to economic downturns Unanticipated events including political

economic and regulatory changes could cause changes in the credit characteristics of the portfolio and result in an unanticipated

increase in the allowance

The Banks current methodology for determining the projected level of losses is based on historical loss rates current credit

grades specific reserve allocations on loans modified as TDRs and impaired commercial credits above specified thresholds and

other qualitative adjustments Due to the heavy reliance on realized historical losses and the credit grade rating process the

calculated reserves required under the model may tend to slightly lag the deterioration in the portfolio in stable or

deteriorating credit environment and may tend not to be as responsive when improved conditions have presented themselves

Given these model limitations and market characteristics the qualitative adjustment factors may be incremental or detrimental

to the quantitative model results An unallocated component to the ALLL is maintained to recognize the imprecision in

estimating and measuring loss Correspondingly the portion considered unallocated may fluctuate from period to period based

on managements evaluation of the factors affecting the assumptions used in calculating the allowance including historical loss

experience and current economic conditions

The allowance is maintained at level estimated to absorb probable credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio as well as other

credit risk related charge-offs The allowance is based on ongoing evaluations of the probable estimated losses inherent in the

loan portfolio The Banks methodology for evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance includes segmentation of the loan

portfolio into its various components tracking the historical levels of classified loans and delinquencies applying economic

outlook factors assigning specific incremental reserves where necessary providing specific reserves on impaired loans and

assessing the nature and trend of loan charge-offs Additionally the volume of non-performing loans concentration risks by

size type and geography new markets collateral adequacy and economic conditions are taken into consideration

The allowance established for probable losses on specific loans are based on regular analysis and evaluation of classified

loans Loans are classified based on an internal credit risk grading process that evaluates among other things the obligors

ability to repay ii the underlying collateral if any and iii the economic environment and industry in which the borrower

operates Loans with grade that is below predetermined grade are adversely classified Any change in the credit risk grade of

performing and/or non-performing loans affects the amount of the related allowance

Once loan is classified the loan is analyzed to determine whether the loan is impaired and if impaired the need to specifically

allocate portion of the allowance for loan losses to the loan Specific valuation allowances are determined by analyzing the

borrowers ability to repay amounts owed collateral deficiencies the relative risk grade of the loan and economic conditions

affecting the borrowers industry among other things

Additionally management individually evaluates nonaccrual loans and all troubled debt restructured loans for impairment

based on the underlying anticipated method of payment consisting of either the expected future cash flows from the borrower or

the proceeds from the disposition of the related collateral If payment is expected solely based on the underlying collateral an

appraisal is completed to assess the fair value of the collateral Collateral dependent impaired loan balances are written down to

the current fair value of each loans underlying collateral resulting in an immediate charge-off to the allowance excluding any

consideration for personal guarantees that may be pursued in the Banks collection process If repayment is based upon future

expected cash flows the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loans original effective interest rate

is compared to the carrying value of the loan and any shortfall is recorded as specific valuation allowance in the allowance for

loan losses

The allowance also contains unallocated reserves to cover inherent losses within given loan category which have not been

otherwise reviewed or measured on an individual basis This unallocated portion of the allowance reflects managements best

estimate of the elements of imprecision and estimation risk inherent in the calculation of the overall allowance Due to the

subjectivity involved in determining the overall allowance including the unallocated portion the portion considered unallocated

may fluctuate from period to period based on managements evaluation of the factors affecting the assumptions used in

calculating the overall allowance including historical loss experience current economic conditions and industry or borrower

concentrations Changes may also occur due to the necessity of maintaining consistent loss coverage ratios for the various loan

risk components

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate While management uses available information to determine

the adequacy of the allowance future additions may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions or subsequent

events unforeseen at the time of evaluation Additionally to the extent that actual results differ from forecasts or managements

judgment the ALLL may be greater or less than future charge-offs

10



In addition various regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process periodically review the Banks

allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require the Bank to increase the allowance based on their judgment of

information available to them at the time of their examination

Bank premises and equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation based upon estimated useful lives of three to 40 years

computed using the straight-line method Leasehold improvements carried at cost net of accumulated depreciation are

generally amortized over the terms of the leases or the estimated useful lives of the assets whichever are shorter using the

straight-line method Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred while major replacements

and improvements are capitalized The net asset values of assets retired or disposed of are removed from the asset accounts and

any related gains or losses are included in operations

Other assets

Other assets include the Banks 35.4% interest in leasing company The investment in the unconsolidated investee is carried

using the equity method of accounting whereby the carrying value of the investment reflects the Corporations initial cost of the

investment and the Corporations share of the leasing companys annual net income or loss

Other real estate owned

OREO acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure is carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated cost

to sell net of valuation allowance When property is acquired the excess of the loan balance over the estimated fair value is

charged to the allowance for loan losses Operating results including any future writedowns of OREO rental income and

operating expenses are included in Other expenses

An allowance for OREO is established through charges to Other expenses to maintain properties at the lower of cost or fair

value less estimated cost to sell

Core deposit premiums

The premium paid for the acquisition of deposits in connection with the purchases of branch offices is amortized on straight-

line basis over nine-year period its estimated useful life and is reviewed at least annually for impairment If an impairment is

found to exist the carrying value is reduced by charge to earnings Amortization totaled $0 in 2011 $566000 in 2010 and

$194000 in 2009 2010 included accelerated amortization of $468000 of core deposit intangibles of two closed branches As
of December 31 2011 all core deposit premiums have been fully amortized

Long-term debt

The Corporation has sold $4 million of trust preferred securities through wholly-owned statutory business trust The trust has

no independent assets or operations and exists for the sole purpose of issuing trust preferred securities and investing the

proceeds thereof in an equivalent amount of junior subordinated debentures issued by the Corporation The junior subordinate

debentures which are the sole assets of the trusts are unsecured obligations of the Corporation and are subordinate and junior

in right of payment to all present and future senior and subordinated indebtedness and certain other financial obligations of the

Corporation

On December 10 2003 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No 46R FIN 46R which replaced FIN 46 FIN 46R clarifies

the applications of Accounting Research Bulletin No 51 Consolidated Financial Statements to certain entities in which equity

investors do not have the characteristics of controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to

finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support FIN 46R required the Corporation to de-consolidate its

investments in the trusts recorded as long-term debt

Income taxes

Federal income taxes are based on currently reported income and
expense after the elimination of income which is

exempt from

Federal income tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Such temporary differences include

depreciation and the provision for possible loan losses Where applicable deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation

allowance for any portions determined not likely to be realized The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date

reserve is maintained related to certain tax positions and strategies that management believes contain an element of

uncertainty Management periodically evaluates each of its tax positions and strategies to determine whether the reserve

continues to be appropriate
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Net loss per common share

Basic loss per common share is calculated by dividing net loss less dividends on preferred stock by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding On diluted basis both net loss and common shares outstanding are adjusted to assume

the conversion of the convertible subordinate debentures if determined to be dilutive

Comprehensive income loss

Other comprehensive income loss includes unrealized gains losses on securities available for sale including the non-credit

portion of any other-than-temporary impairment charges relating to these securities effective April 2009 Comprehensive

income loss and its components are included in the consolidated statements of changes in shareholders equity

Recent accounting pronouncements

Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 Improving

Disclosures About Fair Value Measurements requires new disclosures and clarifies certain existing disclosure requirements

about fair value measurement Specifically the update requires an entity to disclose separately the amounts of significant

transfers in and out of Level and Level fair value measurements and describe the reasons for such transfers reporting

entity is required to present separately information about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the reconciliation of fair

value measurements using Level inputs In addition the update clarifies the following requirements of the existing

disclosures for the purposes
of reporting fair value measurements for each class of assets and liabilities reporting entity

needs to use judgment in determining the appropriate classes of assets and ii reporting entity is required to include

disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value

measurements The disclosures related to the gross presentation of purchases sales issuances and settlements of assets and

liabilities included in Level of the fair value hierarchy became effective on January 2011 The other disclosure requirements

and clarifications made by ASU No 2010-06 became effective on January 2010

ASU No 2011-02 Receivables Topic 310 Creditors Determination of Whether Restructuring Is Troubled Debt

Restructuring provides clarifying guidance intended to assist creditors in determining whether modification of the terms of

receivable meets the criteria to be considered troubled debt restructuring both for purposes of recording an impairment loss

and for disclosure of troubled debt restructurings In evaluating whether restructuring constitutes troubled debt restructuring

creditor must separately conclude under the guidance clarified by ASU No 2011-02 that both of the following exist the

restructuring constitutes concession to the debtor and ii the debtor is experiencing financial difficulties ASU No 2011-02

applies retrospectively to restructurings occurring on or after January 2011 and was effective on July 2011 The adoption

of ASU No 2011-02 is not expected to have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements

ASU No 2011-04 Fair Value Measurements Topic 820 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and

Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRS was issued as result of the effort to develop common fair value

measurement and disclosure requirements in U.S GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS While

ASU No 2011-04 is largely consistent with existing fair value measurement principles in U.S GAAP it expands the existing

disclosure requirements for fair value measurements and clarifies the existing guidance or wording changes to align with IFRS

No 13 Many of the requirements for the amendments in ASU No 2001-04 do not result in change in the application of the

requirements in Topic 820 ASU No 2011-04 was effective for all interim and annual periods beginning after December 15

2011 The adoption of ASU No 2011-04 is not expected to have significant impact on its consolidated financial statements

ASU No 2011-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of Comprehensive Income requires an entity to

present components of comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two

separate but consecutive statements In the two-statement approach the first statement should present total net income and its

components followed consecutively by second statement that should present total other comprehensive income the

components of other comprehensive income and the total of comprehensive income ASU No 2011-05 must be applied

retrospectively and is effective for all interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15 2011 The adoption of

ASU No 2011-05 is not expected to have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements

ASU No 2011-08 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing Goodwill for Impairment provides the option of

performing qualitative assessment of whether it is more likely than not that reporting units fair value is less than its carrying

amount before applying the current two-step goodwill impairment test If the conclusion is that it is more likely than not that

the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount the entity would be required to conduct the current two-step

goodwill impairment test Otherwise the entity would not need to apply the two-step test ASU No 2011-28 is effective for

annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 with early adoption

permitted The adoption of ASU No 2011-08 is not expected to have significant impact on its consolidated financial

statements

In April 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-18 which states that modifications of loans that are accounted for within pool

under ASC 310-30 do not result in the removal of those loans from the pool even if the modification of those loans would
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otherwise be considered troubled debt restructuring An entity will continue to be required to consider whether the pool of

assets in which the loan is included is impaired if expected cash flows for the pool change The amendments do not affect the

accounting for loans under the scope of ASC 310-30 that are not accounted for within pools Loans accounted for individually

under ASC 310-30 continue to be subject to the troubled debt restructuring accounting provisions within ASC 310-40

Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors The amendments were effective for modifications of loans

accounted for within pools undcr Subtopic 310-30 occurring in the first iiiterini UI alulual peuod ending on or after Juiy 15
2010 The adoption of this pronouncement did not have material impact on the Corporations financial condition results of

operations or financial statement disclosures

In July 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-20 to provide financial statement users with greater transparency about an entitys

allowance for credit losses and the credit quality of its financing receivables The objective of the ASU is to provide disclosures

that assist financial statement users in their evaluation of the nature of an entitys credit risk associated with its financing

receivables how the entity analyzes and assesses that risk in arriving at the allowance for credit losses and the changes in

the allowance for credit losses and the reasons for those changes Disclosures provided to meet the objective above should be

provided on disaggregated basis The disclosures as of the end of reporting period were effective for interim and annual

reporting periods ending on or after December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs during reporting period

were effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 The adoption of this

pronouncement did not have material impact on the Corporations financial condition or results of operations

Note Going Concern/Regulatory Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31 2011 have been prepared

on going concern basis which contemplates the realization of assets and the discharge of liabilities in the normal course of

business for the foreseeable future

The Bank was subject to Formal Agreement with the 0CC entered into on June 29 2009 the Formal Agreement The

Formal Agreement required among other things the enhancement and implementation of certain programs to reduce the

Banks credit risk along with the development of capital and profit plan the development of contingency funding plan and

the correction of deficiencies in the Banks loan administration The Bank failed to comply with certain provisions of the

Formal Agreement and failed to comply with the higher leverage ratio of 8% required to be maintained

Due to the Banks condition the 0CC has required that the Board of Directors of the Bank the Bank Board sign formal

enforcement action with the 0CC which mandates specific actions by the Bank to address certain findings from the OCCs
examination and to address the Banks current financial condition The Bank entered into Consent Order Order or Consent

Order with the 0CC on December 22 2010 which contains list of requirements The Order supersedes and replaces the

Formal Agreement The Order also contains restrictions on future extensions of credit and requires the development of various

programs and procedures to improve the Banks asset quality as well as routine reporting on the Banks progress toward

compliance with the Order to the Bank Board and the 0CC As result of the Order the Bank may not be deemed well-

capitalized The description of the Consent Order is only summary

Specifically the Order imposes the following requirements on the Bank

within five days of the Order the Bank Board must appoint Compliance Committee to be comprised of at least

three directors none of whom may be an employee former employee or controlling shareholder of the Bank or any of its

affiliates to monitor and coordinate the Banks adherence to the Order

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board must develop and submit to the 0CC for review written

strategic plan covering at least three-year period establishing objectives for the overall risk profile earnings performance

growth balance sheet mix off-balance sheet activities liability structure capital adequacy reduction in the volume of

nonperforming assets product line development and market segments that the Bank intends to promote or develop together

with strategies to achieve those objectives

by March 31 2011 and thereafter the Bank must maintain total capital at least equal to 13% of risk-weighted assets

and Tier capital at least equal to 9% of adjusted total assets this requirement means that the Bank may not be considered

well-capitalized as otherwise defined in applicable regulations

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board must submit to the 0CC written capital plan for the Bank

covering at least three-year period including specific plans for the achievement and maintenance of adequate capital

projections for growth and capital requirements based upon detailed analysis of the Banks assets liabilities earnings fixed

assets and off-balance sheet activities identification of the primary sources from which the Bank will maintain an appropriate

capital structure to meet the Banks future needs as set forth in the strategic plan specific plans detailing how the Bank will

comply with restrictions or requirements set forth in the Order and with the restrictions against brokered deposits in 12 C.F.R

337.6 contingency plans that identify alternative methods to strengthen capital should the primary sources not be available
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and prohibition on the payment of director fees unless the Bank is in compliance with the minimum capital ratios previously

identified in the prior paragraph or express
written authorization is provided by the 0CC

the Bank is restricted on the payment of dividends

to ensure the Bank has competent management in place at all times including within 90 days of the Order the Bank

Board shall provide to the 0CC qualified and capable candidates for the positions of President Senior Credit Officer Consumer

Compliance Officer and Bank Secrecy Officer within 90 days of the date of the Order the Bank Board with the exception of

Bank executive officers shall prepare written assessment of the Banks executive officers to perform present and anticipated

duties prior to appointment of any individual to an executive position provide notice to the 0CC who shall have the power to

veto such appointment and the Bank Board shall at least annually perform written performance appraisal for each Bank

executive officer

within sixty 60 days of the Order the Bank Board shall develop and the Bank shall implement and thereafter ensure

compliance with written credit policy to ensure the Banks compliance with written programs to improve the Banks loan

c-i-

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board shall develop implement and thereafter ensure Bank adherence to

written program to improve the Banks loan portfolio management including requiring that extensions of credit are granted

by renewal or otherwise to any borrower only after obtaining performing and documenting global analysis of current and

satisfactory credit information requiring that existing extensions of credit structured as single pay notes are revised upon

maturity to conform to the Banks revised loan policy ensuring satisfactory and perfected collateral documentation tracking

and analyzing credit collateral and policy exceptions providing for accurate risk ratings consistent with the classification

standards contained in the Comptrollers Handbook on Rating Credit Risk providing for identification measurement

monitoring and control of concentrations of credit ensuring compliance with Call Report instructions the Banks lending

policies and laws rules and regulations pertaining to the Banks lending function ensuring the accuracy of internal

management information systems and providing adequate training of Bank personnel performing credit analyses in cash flow

analysis particularly analysis using information from tax returns and implement processes to ensure that additional training is

provided as needed

within sixty 60 days of the Order the Bank Board must establish written performance appraisal and salary

administration process for loan officers that adequately consider performance relative to job descriptions policy compliance

documentation standards accuracy in credit grading and other loan administration matters

the Bank must implement and maintain an effective independent and on-going loan review program to review at least

quarterly the Banks loan and lease portfolios to assure the timely identification and categorization of problem credits

the Bank is also required to implement and adhere to written program for the maintenance of an adequate Allowance

for Loan and Lease Losses providing for review of the allowance by the Bank Board at least quarterly

within sixty 60 days of the Order the Bank Board shall adopt and the Bank subject to Bank Board review and

ongoing monitoring shall implement and thereafter ensure adherence to written program designed to protect the Banks

interest in those assets criticized in the most recent Report of Examination ROE by the 0CC in any subsequent ROE by

any internal or external loan review or in any list provided to management by the National Bank Examiners during any

examination as doubtful substandard or special mention

within one hundred twenty 120 days of the Order the Bank Board must revise and maintain comprehensive

liquidity risk management program which assesses on an ongoing basis the Banks current and projected funding needs and

ensures that sufficient funds or access to funds exist to meet those needs which program includes effective methods to achieve

and maintain sufficient liquidity and to measure and monitor liquidity risk

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board shall identify and propose for appointment minimum of two

new independent directors that have background in banking credit accounting or financial reporting and such

appointment will be subject to veto power of the 0CC

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board shall adopt implement and thereafter ensure adherence to

written consumer compliance program designed to ensure that the Bank is operating in compliance with all applicable consumer

protection laws rules and regulations

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board shall develop implement and thereafter ensure Bank adherence

to written program of policies and procedures to provide for compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act as amended 31 U.S.C

5311 et seq the regulations promulgated thereunder and regulations of the Office of Foreign Assets Control OFAC 31
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C.F.R Chapter as amended collectively referred to as the Bank Secrecy Act or BSA and for the appropriate

identification and monitoring of transactions that pose greater than normal risk for compliance with the BSA

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board shall develop implement and thereafter ensure Bank adherence

to an indcpendent internal audit program sufficient to dctcct irregularities and weak practices in the Banks opcrations

determine the Banks level of compliance with all applicable laws rules and regulations assess and report the effectiveness of

policies procedures controls and management oversight relating to accounting and financial reporting evaluate the Banks

adherence to established policies and procedures with particular emphasis directed to the Banks adherence to its loan

consumer compliance and BSA policies and procedures evaluate and document the root causes for exceptions and establish an

annual audit plan using risk-based approach sufficient to achieve these objectives

within ninety 90 days of the Order the Bank Board must develop and implement comprehensive compliance audit

function to include an independent review of all products and services offered by the Bank including without limitation risk-

based audit program to test for compliance with consumer protection laws rules and regulations that includes an adequate level

of transaction testing procedures to ensure that exceptions noted in the audit reports are corrected and responded to by the

appropriate Bank personnel and periodic reporting of the results of the consumer compliance audit to the Bank Board or

committee thereof

the Bank Board shall require and the Bank shall immediately take all necessary steps to correct each violation of law

rule or regulation cited in any ROE or brought to the Bank Boards or Banks attention in writing by management regulators

auditors loan review or other compliance efforts

The Order permits the 0CC to extend the time periods under the Order upon written request Any material failure to comply

with the Order could result in further enforcement actions by the 0CC In addition if the 0CC does not accept the capital plan

or the Bank fails to achieve and maintain the minimum capital levels the Order specifically states that the 0CC may require the

Corporation to sell merge or liquidate the Bank

As result of the Consent Order the Bank may not accept renew or roll over any brokered deposit This affects the Banks

ability to obtain funding In addition the Bank may not solicit deposits by offering an effective yield that exceeds by more than

75 basis points the prevailing effective yields on insured deposits of comparable maturity in such institutions normal market

area or in the market area in which such deposits are being solicited

As of December 31 2011 when considering deadline extensions granted the Corporation has been informed by the 0CC that it

has fully complied with two of the thirteen articles of the Consent Order The two articles in full compliance are Article II

Compliance Committee and Article XIII Internal Audit Program The remaining articles are in various stages of compliance

and management is working diligently to achieve full compliance Please see Note 24 for actual capital ratios as of

December 31 2011

On December 14 2010 the Corporation entered into written agreement the FRBNY Agreement with the Federal Reserve

Bank of New York FRBNY The following is only summary of the FRBNY Agreement Pursuant to the FRBNY

Agreement the Corporations board of directors is to take appropriate steps to utilize fully the Corporations financial and

managerial resources to serve as source of strength to the Bank including causing the Bank to comply with the Formal

Agreement now superseded and any other supervisory action taken by the 0CC such as the Order

In the FRBNY Agreement the Corporation agreed that it would not declare or pay any dividends without prior written approval

of the FRBNY and the Director of the Division of Banking Supervision and Regulation of the Board of Governors of the

Federal Reserve System the Banking Director It further agreed that it would not take dividends or any other form of

payment representing reduction in capital from the Bank without the FRBNYs prior written approval The FRBNY
Agreement also provides that neither the Corporation nor its nonbank subsidiary will make any distributions of interest

principal or other amounts on subordinated debentures or trust preferred securities without the prior written approval of the

FRBNY and the Banking Director

The FRBNY Agreement further provides that the Corporation shall not incur increase or guarantee any debt without FRBNY

approval In addition the Corporation must obtain the prior approval of the FRBNY for the repurchase or redemption of its

shares of stock Additionally the FRBNY Agreement further provides that in appointing any new director or senior executive

officer or changing the responsibilities of any senior executive officer so that the officer would assume different senior

position the Corporation must notify the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and such board or the FRBNY or

the 0CC may veto such appointment or change The FRBNY Agreement further provides that the Corporation is restricted in

making certain severance and indemnification payments The failure of the Corporation to comply with the FRBNY Agreement

could have severe adverse consequences on the Bank and the Corporation
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The Corporation recorded net loss of $3.7 million in 2011 and net loss of $7.5 million in 2010 primarily due to significant

declines in net interest income and other operating income along with higher costs for consultants retained to achieve

compliance with the provisions of the Formal Agreement and Consent Order offset by reduction in the provision for loan

losses However we are currently not generating sufficient operating income to cover operating expenses before consideration

of the provision for loan losses condition which is worsening These ongoing losses will hamper managements ability to

achieve compliance with the required capital ratios

The decrease in real estate values and instability in the market as well as other macroeconomic factors such as unemployment

have contributed to decrease in credit quality and increased provisioning While the Bank and Corporation are implementing

steps to improve their financial performance there can be no assurance they will be successful These deteriorating financial

results and the failure of the Bank to comply with the OCCs higher mandated capital ratios under the Consent Order and the

actions that the 0CC may take as result thereof raise substantial doubt about the Corporations and the Banks ability to

continue as going concerns

As result of the Consent Order collateral requirements for municipal deposit letters of credit issued by the Federal Home

Loan Bank are increasing

Management has developed plan to address the compliance matters raised by the 0CC and the ability to maintain future

financial viability and submitted the plan to the 0CC for approval The 0CC indicated that they had no objections The plan

provides for the addition of new lines of business and strategic growth initiatives restructuring of staff where necessary and

the preparation and use of an Investor Presentation to assist in capital raise We have formed strategic alliance with third-

party online deposit vendor which we believe will attract new sources of deposits and have completed the staff restructuring

We are also in process of our capital raise and expect to expand into new lines of business subject to obtaining the necessary

regulatory approvals upon completion of the capital raise in 2012 However there can be no assurances that the capital raise

will be successful

Note Cash and due from banks

The Bank is required to maintain reserve balance with the Federal Reserve Bank based primarily on deposit levels These

reserve balances averaged $3.1 million in 2011 and $2.5 million in 2010

Note Federal funds sold

Federal funds sold averaged $32.6 million during 2011 and $29.5 million in 2010 while the maximum balance outstanding at

any month-end during 2011 2010 and 2009 was $44.3 million $49.8 million and $70.5 million respectively

Note Investment securities available for sale

The amortized cost and fair values at December 31 of investment securities available for sale were as follows

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value201 In thousands

U.S Treasur securities and obligations of U.S government agencies 9.005 146 9.15

Obligations of U.S government spousnred entities 12.805 33 II 13027

Obligations ol state and political subdis.kions 3.326 74 3.500

Mortgage-hacked securities 58373 2.059 60.432

Other debt securities .366 31 2.190 6.207

Fquity cecurities

Marketable securities 783 19 764

Nonmarketable securities 115

Fcdcral Resers Bank and Federal loine Loan Bank slock 1.862 .62

Total 94.635 2.643 2.220 95058

16



Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses

The amortized cost and the fair values of investments in debt securities available for sale are distributed by contractual maturity
without regard to normal amortization including mortgage-backed securities which will have shorter estimated lives as result

of prepayments of the underlying mortgages

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions

Other debt securitiesi$tl
U.S Treasury securities and obligations

Obligations of state and

political subdivisions

Sales of investment securities available for sale resulted in gross losses of $0 $92000 and $1000 and gross gains of $989000
$2172000 and $12000 in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Additionally impairment charges of 2.3 million were recorded

during 2009 while none were recorded in 2011 or 2010 These charges resulted from the determination that the unrealized

Fair

Value2010 In thousands

Obligations of U.S government sponsored entities 15447 100 267 15280

bhdpjkö4bdMitiert
Mortgage-backed securities 66037 1892 24 67905

eijti 56
Equity securities

kiti1b1it tgetth 74

Nonmarketable securities 115 115

Total 105593 2287 2460 105420

In thousandspIi
U.S Treasury securities and obligations

ijs

Amortized

Cost

Fair

Value

74 391

1000 950

1680 1761

Due after ten years

Obligations of U.S government sponsored

entities 9196 9289

Mortgage-backed securities
57682 59710

Total debt securities
91875 92317

Total 94635 95 058
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losses in two CDOs were other than temporary based on the expectation that it is probable that all principal and interest

payments will not be received in accordance with the securities contractual terms

Interest and dividends on investment securities available for sale were as follows

In thousands 2011 2010 2009

Tax-exempt
246 470 68

gj

Investment securities available for sale with carrying value of $62 million were pledged to secure U.S government and

municipal deposits and Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings at December 31 2011 In certain instances pledging

requirements have increased as result of the Consent Order

Investment securities available for sale which have had continuous unrealized losses as of December 31 are set forth below

Gross Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

T-..... Losses

1527 1824 11 3351 11

Equity securities 783 19 783 19Li
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Gross Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

2010 In thousands Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

U.S Treasury securities and

obligations of U.S government agencies 1054 23 162 1216 24

Mortgaged-backed securities 6219 24 6219 24

Otherdebtsecurities 5050 1839 5050 1839

Total 19153 586 8019 1874 27172 2460

The gross unrealized losses set forth above as of December 31 2011 were attributable primarily to single-issue trust preferred

securities TRUPS issued by financial institutions CDOs collateralized primarily by TRUPS issued by banks and other

corporate debt all of which are included with other debt securities The fair value of these securities has been negatively

impacted by the lack of liquidity in the overall TRUPS and corporate debt markets although all issuers continue to perform

The decline in investment securities with continuing unrealized losses was result of sales of securities with unrealized losses

during the fourth quarter of 2011

The following table presents rollforward of the credit loss component of other-than-temporary impairment losses OTTI on

debt securities for which non-credit component of OTTI was recognized in other comprehensive income loss The beginning

balance represents the credit loss component for debt securities for which OTTI occurred prior to April 2009 OTTI

recognized in earnings after that date for credit-impaired debt securities is presented as additions in two components based

upon whether the current period is the first time debt security was credit-impaired initial credit impairment or is not the first

time debt security was credit impaired subsequent credit impairment

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More

Obligations of U.S Government

sponsored entities

Total
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Changes in the credit loss component of credit-impaired debt securities were as follows

For the Year For the Year

Ended Ended

December 31 December 31
In thousands Oh1 20Th

Beginning balance 2489

Add

iitial credit

Impairments

Deduct

Balance December31

We recorded no OTTI charges during 2011 or 2010

The Bank also owns CDO with carrying value of $996000 and market value of $412000 on which no impairment losses

have been recorded because it is expected that this security will perform in accordance with its original terms and that the

carrying value is fully recoverable based on the investments payment performance consistent market valuations and third-

party consultants conclusion that the investment will continue to be fully performing and fully recoverable in accordance with

the terms of the agreement Additional information for this security is presented below

December 31
In thousands

2011

Par value 1000000

Carrying value 996000

Fair value 412000

Unrealized loss 584000

Number of original issuers 50

Number of currently paying banks in issuance 35

Number of defaulting and deferring banks 12

Percentage of remaining banks expected to default or defer payment annually 1.2%

Subordination 30.60%

Additionally the Bank owns portfolio of six single-issue trust preferred securities with carrying value of $4.5 million and

market value of $3.3 million Finally the Bank also owns two corporate securities with carrying value of $1.9 million and

market value of $1.6 million that are rated below investment grade All values are as of December 31 2011 None of these

securities is considered impaired as they are all fully performing and are expected to continue performing

Available for sale securities in unrealized loss positions are analyzed as part of the Corporations ongoing assessment of OTTI
When the Corporation intends to sell available-for-sale securities the Corporation recognizes an impairment loss equal to the

full difference between the amortized cost basis and fair value of those securities When the Corporation does not intend to sell

available for sale securities in an unrealized loss position potential OTTI is considered based on variety of factors including

the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost adverse conditions specifically related to the

industry the geographic area or financial condition of the issuer or the underlying collateral of security the payment structure

of the security changes to the rating of the security by rating agencies the volatility of the fair value changes and changes in

fair value of the security after the balance sheet date For debt securities the Corporation estimates cash flows over the

remaining lives of the underlying collateral to assess whether credit losses exist and to determine if any adverse changes in cash

flows have occurred The Corporations cash flow estimates take into account expectations of relevant market and economic

data as of the end of the reporting period
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Other factors considered in determining whether loss is temporary include the length of time and the extent to which fair value

has been below cost the severity of the impairment the cause of the impairment the financial condition and near-term

prospects of the issuer activity in the market of the issuer which may indicate adverse credit conditions and the forecasted

recovery period using current estimates of volatility in market interest rates including liquidity and risk premiums

Managements assertion regarding its intent not to sell or that it is not more likely than not that the Corporation will be required

to sell the security before its anticipated recovery considers number of factors including quantitative estimate of the

expected recovery period which may extend to maturity and managements intended strategy with respect to the identified

security or portfolio If management does have the intent to sell or believes it is more likely than not that the Corporation will be

required to sell the security before its anticipated recovery the gross unrealized loss is charged directly to earnings in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations

As of December 31 2011 the Corporation does not intend to sell the securities with an unrealized loss position in accumulated

other comprehensive loss AOCL and it is not more likely than not that the Corporation will be required to sell these

securities before recovery of their amortized cost basis The Corporation believes that the securities with an unrealized loss in

Illl
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Note Loans

Loans net of unearned discount and net deferred origination fees and costs at December 31 were as follows

In thousands 20 2010

oinmercial 26516 38225

Real estate 181.53 206.072

Installment
--

720 718

Total loans 208767 245.015

ess Unearned income 52 60

Loans 208.715 244955

The Corporation categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service

their debt such as current financial information historical payment experience credit documentation public information and

current economic trends among other factors For non-homogeneous loans such as commercial and commercial real estate

loans the Corporation analyzes the loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk and assesses the probability of

collection for each type of class The Corporation uses the following definitions for risk ratings

Pass Pass assets are well protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or guarantors if any or by

the fair value less cost to acquire and sell of any underlying collateral in timely manner

Special Mention special mention asset has potential weaknesses that deserve managements close attention If left

uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset or in the

institutions credit position at some future date Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose an

institution to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification

Substandard substandard asset is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or

by the collateral pledged if any Assets so classified must have well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the

liquidation of the debt They are characterized by the distinct possibility that we will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not

corrected

Doubtful An asset classified doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified substandard with the added

characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full highly questionable and improbable on the basis of

currently known facts conditions and values

Loss An asset or portion thereof classified loss is considered uncollectible and of such little value that its continuance on the

institutions books as an asset without establishment of specific valuation allowance or charge-off is not warranted This

classification does not necessarily mean that an asset has no recovery or salvage value but rather there is significant doubt

about whether how much or when the recovery will occur As such it is not practical or desirable to defer the write-off

As of December 31 2011 and based on the most recent analysis performed the risk category of loans by class of loans is as

follows

20



In thousands

Commercial loans

Real estate loans

Church

Construction other than

third-party originated

Constntction third-party

originated

Multifamily

Other

Residential

Total

265I6

57458

10448

The following table presents the aging of the recorded investment in past due loans as of December 31 2011

In thousands

Commercial loam

Real estate loans

Church

Construction other than

third-party cd

More than Total Past

0-30 Days 30-60 Days O-9O Days 90 Days Due

177 1745 784 2248 4952

In thousands

Commercial loans

Real estate loans

Nonperforming loans include loans which are contractually past due 90 days or more for which interest income is still being
accrued and nonaccrual loans

At December 31 nonperforming loans were as follows

Special

Pass Mention

23560 1084

Substandard Doubtful Loss

1656 216

30133

3115

10594

41903

20359

7105 20220

7333

6990

66 1673

6907 19878

2977

Installment
_____

18

130382 15163

1047

273

958

60728 2494

8037

12606

69646

23336

720

208767

8127 8694

Current Total

21564 26516

Other

Residential

Installment

6478 23299 34159 57458

106 608 1404 2118

1986 1632 3837 9639 17094

89 1299 2557 3945

________
16

2376

20

13345 13924 36414 66059

10488

52552

19391

700

142708

The following table presents the recorded investment in impaired loans as of December 2011 by class of loans

69646

23336

720

208767

Recorded

Investment

Unpaid

Principal

Balance

Related

Allowance

363 462 216

Clwfuh 9586 9973 54
Construction other than third-party originated 6070 7509 311

Coustrmtionthird-party originated 803i IQ8i5 346

Multifamily 1308 1951

Otl 15027 16265 65

Residential 2583 2266 38

Installtnent
_______

42974 49241 1521
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In thousands 2011 2010

Noiaccrual loans 42008 35916

Loans with interest or principal 90

days or more past due and still accruing 2218 2343

Total nonptrtbntting Oai1 44226 38259

The effect of nonaccrual loans on income before taxes is presented below

In thousands 2011 2010 2009

Interest income totegone 1641 1723 785

Interest income received 119 188

1641 1604 57

The Bank received $1 million of interest payments in 2011 on nonaccrual loans all of which will be used to reduce the related

loan balance when the loan is ultimately paid off sold or charged off

Nonperforming assets are generally secured by residential and small commercial real estate properties except for church loans

which are generally secured by the church buildings

At December 31 2011 there were no commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers for loans that were on nonaccrual or

contractually past due in excess of 90 days and still accruing interest or to borrowers whose loans have been restructured

majority of the Banks loan portfolio is concentrated in the New York City metropolitan area and is secured by commercial

properties The borrowers abilities to repay
their obligations are dependent upon various factors including the borrowers

income net worth cash flows generated by the underlying collateral the value of the underlying collateral and priority of the

Banks lien on the related property Such factors are dependent upon various economic conditions and individual circumstances

beyond the Banks control Accordingly the Bank may be subject to risk of credit losses

Impaired loans totaled $43.0 million at December 31 2011 compared to $34.8 million at December 31 2010 Charge-offs of

impaired loans during 2011 totaled $2 million The related allocation of the allowance for loan losses amounted to $1.5 million

and $550000 at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively $36.7 million of impaired loans have no allowance allocated to

them as sufficient collateral exists The average balance of impaired loans during 2011 was $38.9 million and amounted to

$24.2 million in 2010 There was no interest income recognized on impaired loans during either 2011 or 2010

We may extend restructure or otherwise modify the terms of existing loans on case-by-case basis to remain competitive or to

assist other customers who may be experiencing financial difficulty If concession has been made to borrower experiencing

financial difficulty the loan is then classified as troubled debt restructuring TDR The majority of concessions made for

TDRs involve lowering the monthly payments on the loans either through reduction in interest rate below market rate an

extension of the term of the loan or combination of the two methods They seldom result in the forgiveness of principal or

accrued interest In addition we attempt to obtain additional collateral or guarantees when modifying such loans If the

borrower demonstrates the ability to perform under the restructured terms the loan will continue to accrue interest Nonaccruing

restructured loans may be returned to accrual status when there has been sustained period of repayment performance

generally six consecutive months of payments and both principal and interest are considered collectible

As result of the adoption of ASU 2011-02 CNB reassessed all loan restructurings that occurred on or after January 2011 for

potential identification as TDRs and has concluded that the adoption of ASU 2011-02 did not materially impact the number of

TDRs or the specific reserves for such loans included in our allowance for loan losses at December 2011

Troubled debt restructured loans TDR5 totaled $5.7 million at December 31 2011 and $2.9 million at December 31 2010

with related allowance of $111 .000 and none at December 31 2010 and included eight borrowers at December 31 2011

TDRs to five borrowers amounting to $4 million were accruing The remainder are on nonaccrual status due to delinquent

payments All TDRs are included in the balance of impaired loans Three TDRs totaling $1.8 million defaulted on the modified

terms during 2011

The following tables present loans by loan class modified as TDRs during 2011 The pre-modification and post-modification

outstanding recorded investments disclosed in the tables below represent carrying amounts immediately prior to the

modification and at December 31 2011 respectively There were no chargeoffs resulting from loans modified as TDRs during

2011
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Year Ended December 31 201
Pre- Post-

Troubled Debt Number of Modification Modification

______
Restructurings Contracts Outstanding Outstanding

Commercial real estate

Other 3225 2323

Total commercial teal estate 6.325 4973

Residential mortgage 939 756

Total 7264 5729

TDRs totaling $1.8 million defaulted as to the modified terms during 2011

Note Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of probable loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio

Determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses is considered critical accounting estimate because it requires

significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans

estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience and consideration of current economic

trends and conditions all of which may be susceptible to significant change Bank regulators as an integral part of their

examination process also review the allowance for loan losses Such regulators may require based on their judgments about

information available to them at the time of their examination that certain loan balances be charged off or require that

adjustments be made to the allowance for loan losses when their credit evaluations differ from those of management

Additionally the allowance for loan losses is determined in part by the composition and size of the loan portfolio which

represents the largest asset type on the consolidated statement of financial condition

The allowance for loan losses consists of four elements specific reserves for individually impaired credits reserves for

classified or higher risk rated loans reserves for non-classified loans and unallocated reserves Other than the specific

reserves the calculation of the allowance takes into consideration numerous risk factors both internal and external to the

Corporation including changes in loan portfolio volume the composition and concentrations of credit new market initiatives

migration to loss analysis and the amount and velocity of loan charge-offs among other factors

Management performs formal quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses The analysis of the

allowance for loan losses has component for impaired loan losses and component for general loan losses Management has

defined an impaired loan to be loan for which it is probable based on current information that the Corporation will not collect

all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms of the agreement The Corporation defined the population of impaired
loans subject to be all nonaccrual loans with an outstanding balance of $100000 or greater and all loans subject to troubled

debt restructuring Impaired loans are individually assessed to determine that the loans carrying value is not in excess of the

estimated fair value of the collateral less cost to sell if the loan is collateral dependent or the present value of the expected
future cash flows if the loan is not collateral dependent Management performs detailed evaluation of each impaired loan and

generally obtains updated appraisals as part of the evaluation In addition management adjusts estimated fair value down to

appropriately consider recent market conditions and costs to dispose of any supporting collateral Determining the estimated fair

value of underlying collateral and related costs to sell can be subjective in illiquid real estate markets and is subject to

significant assumptions and estimates Management employs independent third party experts in appraisal preparations and

performs reviews to ascertain the reasonableness of updated appraisals Projecting the expected cash flows under troubled debt

restructurings is inherently subjective and requires among other things an evaluation of the borrowers current and projected

financial condition Actual results may be significantly different than projections and the established allowance for loan losses

on these loans and could have material effect on the Corporations financial results

New appraisals are generally obtained annually for all impaired loans and impairment write-downs are taken when appraisal

values are less than the carrying value of the related loan

The allowance contains reserves identified as unallocated to cover inherent losses in the loan portfolio which have not been

otherwise reviewed or measured on an individual basis Such reserves include managements evaluation of the regional

economy loan portfolio volumes the composition and concentrations of credit credit quality and delinquency trends These

reserves reflect managements attempt to ensure that the overall allowance reflects margin for judgmental factors and the

uncertainty that is inherent in estimates of probable credit losses

Although management believes that the allowance for loan losses has been maintained at adequate levels to reserve for probable
losses inherent in its loan portfolio additions may be necessary if future economic and other conditions differ substantially from
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the current operating environment Although management uses the best information available the level of the allowance for

loan losses remains an estimate that is subject to significant judgment and short-term change

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses are summarized as follows

Balance Provision for Balance

December 31 Loan December 31

In thousands 2010 Losses Recoveries Chargeoffs 2011

Commercial loans 2770$ 1274$ 220$ 411$ 1305

Real estate loans

Church 1559 492 99 68 2082

Construction other than

third-party originated
462 2038 1502 998

Construction third-party

originated 1575 959 270 346

Multifamily 633 280 68 285

Other 2333 189 68 649 1941

Residential 736 247 149 840

Installment 55 42 48 51

Unallocated
_________

503 2519 3022

Total 10626$ 3014 395$ 3165$ 10870

Balance Provision for Balance

December 31 Loan December 31

In thousands 2009 Losses Recoveries Chargeoffs 2010

Commercial loans 1352$ 3764$ 2353 2770

Real estate loans

Church 1074 691 206 1559

Construction other than

third-party originated 644 195 377 462

Construction third-party

originated 2392 1104 1921 1575

Multifamily 716 469 552 633

Other 2080 1840 39 1626 2333

Residential 189 1024 477 736

Installment 19 81 48 55

Unallocated 184 319 503

Total 8650 9487 49 7560 10626

The following tables present the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment along with the related recorded investment in

loans based on impairment method as of December 31 2011
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In thousands

Real estate loans

Construction other than third-party originated

Constttctin thit4paity niginte4

Multifamily

Other

Residential

Unallocated

In thousands

iIfia1 1an

Real estate loans

Construction other than third-party originated

Costrneticn tltird4arty urigiinte4

Multifamily

Oth
Residential

Individually Collectively Total

Evaluated Evaluated Allowance

1O9 ues

54 2082

311 687 998

346

285 285

65 1876 1941

38 802 840

51 51

3022 3022

L521 934 ic870

Individually Collectively

Evaluated Evaluated

363 261$

47872 57458

4377 10447

8037

11298 12606

546I9 6946

20754 23337

____ 70_ 720

165793 208767

Note Deposits

Deposits at December 31 are presented below

Total

Recorded

Investment

2616

9588

6070

8037

1308

15U7

2583

42974

Note Premises and equipment

summary of premises and equipment at December 31 follows

In thousands 2011 2010

129

Premises 1520 1520

1uniture and eqnpItlfl 4Z78 4436

Leasehold improvements 3585 3563

7ot1 cost 97I2 9848

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization 7026 6874

oM1prenis at qtgp1nett 2$ 2974

Depreciation and amortization expense charged to operations amounted to $366000 $404000 and $432000 in 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively
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In thousands 2011 2010

Noninterestbearingdemand 37379 35132

Interest bearing

Demand 47744 45707

Savings 22696 23009

Motley m4et 44235 61947

Time 147217 172756

Total i1ltest bearing deposits 261892 O3419

Total deposits 299271 338551

Time deposits issued in amounts of $100000 or more have the following maturities at December 31

In thousands 2011 2010

Threemóntji t1Øs 38893 41276

Over three months but within six months 10630 18580

Ovtlr st tliqi1tl bLIt ttv1 941 l3937

Over twelve months 35008 38067

1Qt$ 4pp4ts 97472 60

Interest expense on certificates of deposits of $100000 or more was $1747000 $2577000 and $2171000 in 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

Note 10 Short-term borrowings

Information regarding short-term borrowings at December 31 is presented below

Average
Interest

Rate on

December 31 December 31

Balance Balance

Average

Interest

Rate

During

the Year

Maximum
Balance

at any

Month-

End

The demand note which has no stated maturity is issued by the Bank to the U.S Treasury Department is payable with interest

at 25 basis points less than the weekly average of the daily effective Federal Funds rate and is collateralized by various

investment securities held at the Federal Reserve Bank of New York with book value of $0 There was no balance outstanding

under the note at December 31 2011 or 2010 so no collateral was required

The Corporation had short-term borrowing line of $3 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 with correspondent bank

which was unused at December 31 2011 and 2010

Note 11 Long-term debt

Long-term debt at December 31 is summarized as follows

Average

Balance

During

the YearDollars in thousands

1117%iecieral funds purchased 22

Total 33 0.82%

Federal funds purchased 33 0.89%

Demand note issued to the U.S Treasury

a2v_
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hi thousands 201 2010

FHLB convertible advances due August 208 10000 100X

8.00% capital note due May 2017 2X 200

5.00Y senior note due February 21 2022 5.000 5000

Subordinated debt 4.000 4000

Total 19.200 19200

Less Short-term portion of long-term debt 50X 5000

Total 14.200 14.200

Interest is payable quarterly on the FHLB advance The advance bears fixed interest rate of 6.15% and is secured by

mortgages and certain obligations of U.S Government agencies under blanket collateral agreement

The Corporation had borrowing lines with the Federal Home Loan Bank totaling $52.5 million at December 31 2011 and $60.4

million at December 31 2010 of which $10.0 million $0 million was used and outstanding at both December 31 2011 and

2010 The balance of the lines was used primarily as collateral for the issuance by FHLB of municipal letters of credit to our

municipality customers These lines may be utilized for long-term or short-term borrowing purposes Loans and investment

securities totaling $52.5 million were held by the FHLB as collateral for their available lines and advances as well as $38.3

million of municipal letters of credit During 2012 FHLB raised the collateral requirements for the Banks borrowing lines

Interest is payable on the 8.00% capital note semiannually through May 2017 at which time the entire principal balance is

due The note is then renewable at the option of the Corporation for an additional fifteen years at the prevailing rate of interest

Interest is payable on the 5.00% senior note quarterly for the first ten years Interest thereafter is payable quarterly at fixed rate

based on the yield of the ten-year U.S Treasury note plus 150 basis points in effect on the tenth anniversary of the note

agreement Quarterly principal payments of $250000 commence in the eleventh year of the loan As an additional condition for

receiving the loan the Bank is required to contribute $100000 annually for the first five years the loan is outstanding to

nonprofit lending institution formed jointly by CNB and the lender to provide financing to small businesses that would not

qualify for bank loans

On November 2010 the Corporation entered into First Amendment to Credit Agreement the Amendment with The

Prudential Insurance Company of America Prudential amending and modifying that certain Credit Agreement by and

between the Corporation and Prudential dated as of February 21 2007 the Credit Agreement

The purpose of the Amendment was to modify the use of proceeds provisions of the Credit Agreement governing

Prudentials $5000000 unsecured term loan to the Corporation so that the Corporation could convert its $5000000

subordinated loan to the Bank into equity of the Bank that will be treated by the 0CC as Tier regulatory capital waive

certain events of default resulting from the Banks entry into the Formal Agreement with the 0CC and failure to meet certain

other material obligations including deferral of dividends to its Series and Preferred stockholders and deferral of certain

obligations to holders of debentures related to its trust preferred securities waive any default interest that may have accrued

during the pendency of such events of default and amend and restate the financial covenants of the Credit Agreement On

November 30 2010 upon receipt of 0CC approval the subordinated loan was converted into equity thereby increasing the

Banks Tier leverage capital However as result of the Consent Order entered into on December 22 2010 and the failure to

achieve certain capital ratios required by the 0CC the Corporation was in default under this loan and is attempting to obtain

waiver from the lender As result of the default the loan has been reclassified to short-term portion of long-term debt on the

accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets

On March 17 2004 City National Bancshares Corporation issued $4 million of preferred capital securities through City

National Bank of New Jersey Capital Trust II the Trust special-purpose statutory trust created expressly for the issuance

of these securities Distribution of interest on the securities is payable at the three-month LIBOR rate plus 2.79% adjustable

quarterly The rate in effect at December 31 2011 was 3.35%

The quarterly distributions may at the option of the Trust be deferred for up to twenty consecutive quarterly periods If the

interest is deferred for more than twenty quarters then there is an event of default In that event and if the trustee or more than

25% of the holders of the outstanding debt securities declare the entire principal balance and outstanding interest to be

immediately due and payable then such amounts are to be paid to the trustee along with amounts for trustee and other advisor

expenses The proceeds have been invested in junior subordinated debentures of CNBC at terms identical to the preferred

capital securities Cash distributions on the securities are made to the extent interest on the debentures is received by the Trust

In the event of certain changes or amendments to regulatory requirements or federal tax rules the securities are redeemable The

securities are generally redeemable in whole or in part on or after March 17 2009 at any interest payment date at price equal

to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption The securities must be redeemed by March 17

2034
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The Corporation has deferred its regularly scheduled quarterly interest payments on these securities and as of the last day of

2011 total of $252818 in interest was deferred The subsidiary trust is not included with the consolidated financial

statements of the Corporation because of the deconsolidation required by accounting standards The debentures are eligible for

inclusion in Tier capital for regulatory purposes

Scheduled repayments on long-term debt are as follows

In thousands Amount

2013

2014

2015

2016

Thereafter 4.20

Total 19200

Note 12 Other operating income and expenses

Eke lollowing table presents the major components of other operating income and expenses

In thousands 201 2010 2009

Other income

Debit card income 73 71 66

Agency fees 26 236

Miscellaneous other income 338 274 32%

Total other income 417 371 630

Other expenses

Appraisal fees 125 191 35

A1M processing tees 139 157 122

communications expense 105 123 129

Correspondent bank fees 106 142 46

Directors fees 172 140

Forgery loss 300

Miscellaneous other expenses 1095 1283 1067

Total other expenses 1.570 2.368 1.639

Note 13 Income taxes

The components of income lax cxpeiise are as follows

In thousands 201 2010 2009

Current expense benefitl

Federal 681 595

State 64 196 29

73 485 566

Deferred expense

Federal and state 845 2372

Total income tax expense
73 360 1806

reconciliation between income tax expense and the total expected federal income tax computed by multiplying pre-tax

accounting income by the statutory federal income tax rate is as follows
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Inthousands 2011 2010 2009

r1jxne ta saiiWiyr1tte 1225
Increase decrease in income tax expense resulting from

Oos ta dfure4 tt asset buit

State income tax benefit expense net of federal benefit 48 362 517

Taempt ineom 45O
Carryback claims 328

i1cowntd lifu itSUrflCe 64 65
Increase in valuation allowance 1702 3800 3505

PrmaflenfM adJutmxits

Other net 29 46 345

oiItx1itse 73
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 are as follows

In thousands 2011 2010

eied st
Allowance for loan losses 4858 3106

NOLarrfQJW$4 Z$6
AMT tax credit carryforward 515 565

Tnt1npt etitii 792

Premises and equipment 425 385

EepsiL innib1
Deferred compensation 478 1075

Ddered 482

Nonaccrual loan interest 638 238

tal cyforward

Other assets 435 60

Deferred tax liabilities

rae tW$mc1 eduitS 43

Investment in partnership 1302 1128

fexrd 426

Total_deferred tax liabilities 1612 1617

ef Tdfx ast

Valuation allowance 10410 8815

Nec de4 ta sset

The net deferred tax asset represents the anticipated federal and state tax assets to be realized in future years upon the utilization

of the underlying tax attributes comprising this balance If it is more likely than not likelihood of more than 50% that some

portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized the deferred tax asset must be reduced by valuation allowance

based on the weight of all available evidence The allowance should be sufficient to reduce the deferred tax asset to the amount

that is more likely than not to be realized During 2011 the valuation allowance was increased by $1.7 million because the

Corporation continues to be in three-year cumulative loss position and it is not more likely than not that the Corporation will

utilize its deferred tax assets

The Corporation records estimated penalties and interest if any related to unrecognized tax benefits in other operating expense
The Corporations tax returns are subject to examination by federal tax authorities for the years 2008 through 2010 and by state

authorities also for the years 2007 through 2010

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax positions is as follows
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Inthousands 2011 2010

Balance at .latiuary 44

Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 44

Additins for tax positions prior years

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 44
BalanceatDeeem1er 31

Note 14 Benefit plans

Savings plan

The Bank maintains an employee savings plan under section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code covering all employees with

at least six months of service Participants are allowed to make contributions to the plan by salary reduction up to 15% of total

compensation The Bank provides matching contributions of 50% of the first 6% of participant salaries subject to vesting

schedule Contribution expense amounted to $61000 in 2011 $78000 in 2010 and $23000 in 2009 During 2010 the Bank

reversed the discretionary contributions that are periodically credited to participants accounts

Bonus plan

The Bank may award profit sharing bonuses to its officers and employees based on the achievement of certain performance

objectives Bonuses charged credited to operating expenses in 2011 2010 and 2009 amounted to $0 $85000 and

$103000 respectively The credits in 2010 and 2009 resulted from decisions to permanently not pay bonuses previously

accrued

Nonqualified benefit plans

The Bank maintained supplemental executive retirement plan SERP which provides post-employment supplemental

retirement benefit to certain key executive officers SERP expense was $0 in 2011 $40000 in 2010 and $66000 in 2009 The

credit in 2010 resulted from the reversal of accrued benefits to participant who left the Bank during 2010 and was not entitled

to the benefits accrued

The Bank also had director retirement plan DRIP DRIP expense was $3 1000 in 2011 $47000 in 2010 and $86000 in

2009 Benefits under both plans were frozen as of June 30 2010 upon termination of the plans

Benefit costs under both plans are funded through bank-owned life insurance policies In addition expenses for both plans

along with the expense related to carrying the policy itself are offset by increases in the cash surrender value of the policies

Such increases are included in Other income and totaled $257000 in 2011 $257000 in 2010 and $252000 in 2009 while the

related life insurance expense was $68000 in 2011 $64000 in 2010 and $59000 in 2009

Stock options

No stock options have been issued since 1997 and there were no stock options outstanding at December 31 2011 2010 and

2009

Note 15 Preferred stock

The Corporation is authorized to issue perpetual preferred stock in one or more series with no par value Shares of preferred

stock have preference over the Corporations common stock with respect to the payment of dividends and liquidation rights

Different series of preferred stock may have different stated or liquidation values as well as different rates Dividends are paid

annually

Set forth below is summary of the Corporations preferred stock issued and outstanding

December 31

Year Dividend Stated Number

Issued Rate Value of Shares 2011 2010

Series 1996 6.00% 25900 200000 OOOOO

Series 1996 8.00 250 108 27000 27000

4$ries 1997 60 380 82O090 820000

SeriesE 2005 6.00 50000 28 1400000 1400000

Sries 2005 SM 1000000 7000 4791oQ0 6790000

Series 2006 6.00 50000 21 1050000 1050000

Setes 2009 5.00 9439000 9439 19504000 9990000

20791000 20277000
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Series and shares are redeemable at any time at par value while Series shares are redeemable at par value plus

premium payable in the event of change of control

Each Series share is convertible at any time into 333 shares of common stock of the Corporation and are redeemable any time

by the Corporation after 2008 at liquidation value The Series shares are redeemable after 2011 by the Corporation at

declining premium until 2020 at which time the shares are redeemable at par

On April 10 2009 the Corporation issued 9439 shares of fixed-rate cumulative perpetual preferred stock to the U.S

Department of Treasury These shares pay cumulative dividends at rate of five percent per annum until the fifth anniversary of

the date of issuance after which the rate increases to nine percent per annum Dividends are paid quarterly in arrears and unpaid

dividends are accrued over the period the preferred shares are outstanding

In 2011 City National Bancshares Corporation deferred the payment of its regular quarterly cash dividend on its Series fixed-

rate cumulative perpetual preferred stock issued to the U.S Treasury in connection with the Corporations participation in the

Treasurys TARP Capital Purchase Program In addition the Corporation in 2011 deferred its regularly scheduled quarterly

interest payment on its junior subordinated debentures issued by the City National Bank of New Jersey Capital Statutory Trust

II the Trust

The Series preferred stock and the junior subordinated debentures issued in favor of the Trust provide for cumulative

dividends and interest respectively Accordingly the Corporation may not pay dividends on any of its common or preferred

stock until the dividends on Series preferred stock and the interest on such debentures are paid-up currently There were no

dividend payments made on preferred stock during 2011 although such dividends have been accrued because they are

cumulative

On May 2009 the Corporation paid cash dividend of $2.00 per share to common stockholders while no dividend has since

been paid to common shareholders The Corporation is currently unable to determine when dividend payments may be resumed

and does not expect to pay common stock dividend in 2012 Whether cash dividends will be paid in the future depends upon

various factors including the earnings and financial condition of the Bank and the Corporation at the time Additionally federal

and state laws and regulations contain restrictions on the ability of the Bank and the Corporation to pay dividends

Note 16 Restrictions on subsidiary bank dividends

Subject to applicable law the Board of Directors of the Bank and of the Corporation may provide for the payment of dividends

when it is determined that dividend payments are appropriate taking into account factors including net income capital

requirements financial condition alternative investment options tax implications prevailing economic conditions industry

practices and other factors deemed to be relevant at the time

Because CNB is national banking association it is subject to regulatory limitation on the amount of dividends it may pay to its

parent corporation CNBC Prior approval of the 0CC is required if the total dividends declared by the Bank in any calendar

year exceeds net profit as defined for that year combined with the retained net profits from the preceding two calendar years

although currently such approval is required to declare any dividend Based upon this limitation rio funds were available for the

payment of dividends to the parent corporation at December 31 2011 In addition pursuant to the December 14 2010

Agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York neither the Corporation nor the Bank may pay any dividends without

the approval of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and the Director of the Division of Banking Supervision and Regulation

of the Board of Governors and the Consent Order with the 0CC further restricts the payment of dividends without the consent

of the 0CC

Note 17 Net ioss per common share

The following table presents the computation of net loss per common share
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Net income per common share

Diluted

Note 18 Related party transactions

Certain directors including organizations in which they are officers or have significant ownership were customers of and had

other transactions with the Bank in the ordinary course of business during 2011 and 2010 Such transactions were on

substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral with respect to loans as those prevailing at the time of

comparable transactions with others Further such transactions did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability and

did not include any unfavorable features

Total loans to the aforementioned individuals and organizations amounted to $4.4 million and $4.5 million at December 31

2011 and 2010 respectively The highest amount of such indebtedness during 2011 and 2010 was $4.5 million in both years

During 2011 there were $10000 of new loans and paydowns totaled $181000 All related party loans were performing as of

December 31 2011

Note 19 Fair value measurement of assets and liabilities

The following table represents the assets and liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value at December 31

2011 by level within the fair value hierarchy The fair value hierarchy established by ASC Topic 820 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the

highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities level measurement and the

lowest priority to unobservable inputs level measurements The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical unrestricted assets

or liabilities

Level Quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially

the full term of the assets or liabilities and

Level Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and

unobservable i.e supported by little or no market activity

The following tables present the assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value hierarchy

2011

Dollars in thousands Total Level Level Level

Investment securities available for sale 95058 9151 85495 412

2010

Dollars in thousands Total Level Level Level

Investment securities available for sale 105420 3429 101492 499

The fair value of Level investments of $412000 at December 31 2011 was slightly less than the related fair value of

$499000 at December 31 2010 Most of the reduction was attributable to decline in value of collateralized debt obligation

CDO

In thousands except per share data 2011 2010 2009

let Joss 3767 7457 7822

Dividends on preferred stock 514 491 1154

Ne 1o p$kai1le bask mnoi1ws 4281 1948 $976
Dividends applicable to convertible preferred stock 147 147 147

4134 c8$ 29
Number of average common shares

Bs1c 3L320 131290 131290

Diluted

Avr colp sires outstai4itig Ifl320 131290 131290

Average potential dilutive common shares

11
-- z-

32Q i54 636
32.60 60.54 68.36
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Level securities includes securities issued by the U.S Treasury Department based upon quoted market prices Level

securities includes fair value measurements obtained from various sources including the utilization of matrix pricing dealer

quotes market spreads live trading levels credit information and the bonds terms and conditions among other things Any

investment security not valued based on the aforementioned criteria are considered Level Level fair values are determined

using unobservable inputs and include corporate debt obligations for which there are no readily available quoted market values

as discussed widei Maiiageineiii iiiscussion and Anaiysis or i-inanciai Lonultion ann K5U1E5 Or uperanons Investments

For such securities market values have been provided by the trading desk of an investment bank which compares

characteristics of the securities with those of similar securities and evaluates credit events in underlying collateral or obtained

from an external pricing specialist which utilized discounted cash flow model

At December 31 2011 the Corporation had impaired loans with outstanding principal balances of $43 million The Corporation

recorded impairment net charge-offs of $2 million for the year ended December 31 2011 utilizing Level inputs

Additionally during 2011 the Corporation transferred loans with principal balance and an estimated fair value less costs to

sell of $140000 to other real estate owned Impaired assets are valued utilizing current appraisals adjusted downward by

management as necessary for changes in relevant valuation factors subsequent to the appraisal date

Note 20 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which an asset or obligation could be exchanged in current transaction

between willing parties other than in forced liquidation Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time based on the

type of financial instrument and relevant market information

Because no quoted market price exists for significant portion of the Corporations financial instruments the fair values of

such financial instruments are derived based on the amount and timing of future cash flows estimated discount rates as well as

managements best judgment with respect to current economic conditions Many of these estimates involve uncertainties and

matters of significant judgment and cannot be determined with precision

The fair value information provided is indicative of the estimated fair values of those financial instruments and should not be

interpreted as an estimate of the fair market value of the Corporation taken as whole The disclosures do not address the value

of recognized and unrecognized nonfinancial assets and liabilities or the value of future anticipated business In addition tax

implications related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses could have substantial impact on these fair value

estimates and have not been incorporated into any of the estimates

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values of significant financial instruments at

December 31 2011 and 2010

Cash short-term investments and interest-bearing deposits with banks

These financial instruments have relatively short maturities or no defined maturities but are payable on demand with little or no

credit risk For these instruments the carrying amounts represent reasonable estimate of fair value

Investment securities

Investment securities are reported at their fair values based on prices obtained from nationally recognized pricing service

where available Otherwise fair value measurements are obtained from various sources including dealer quotes matrix pricing

market spreads live trading levels credit information and the bonds terms and conditions among other things Management
reviews all prices obtained for reasonableness on quarterly basis

Loans

Fair values were estimated for performing loans by discounting the future cash flows using market discount rates that reflect the

credit and interest-rate risk inherent in the loans reduced by the allowance for loan losses This method of estimating fair value

does not incorporate the exit price concept of fair value prescribed by the FASB ASC Topic for Fair Value Measuring and

Disclosure

Loans held for sale

The fair value for loans held for sale is based on estimated secondary market prices

Deposit liabilities

The fair values of demand deposits savings deposits and money market accounts were the amounts payable on demand at

December 31 2011 and 2010 The fair value of time deposits was based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows The

discount rate was estimated utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities

These fair values do not include the value of core deposit relationships that comprise significant portion of the Banks deposit

base Management believes that the Banks core deposit relationships provide relatively stable low-cost funding source that

has substantial value separate from the deposit balances

Short-term borrowings

For such short-term borrowings the carrying amount was considered to be reasonable estimate of fair value
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Long-term debt

The fair value of long-term debt was estimated based on rates currently available to the Corporation for debt with similar terms

and remaining maturities

Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit

The estimated fair value of financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk is not significant at December 31 2011 and 2010

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments at December

2011 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value ValueIn thousands

Financial assets

Cash and other short-term Ins esiments 38.560 38.560 20.778 20.778

Interest-bearing deposits with banks 1940 1.940 3.289 3.289

iwvcstnacnt scurtk AFS 95.058 95.058 105.120 105 120

loans 208715 203084 244.955 239.242

Financial liabilities

Deposits 299.27 289.043 338S51 Th434

ong-term debt 19.200 20.436 19.200 19.631

Note 21 Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business the Corporation or its subsidiary may from time to time be party to various legal proceedings

relating to the conduct of its business In the opinion of management the consolidated financial statements will not be

materially affected by the outcome of any pending legal proceedings

At December 31 2011 the Bank was obligated under number of noncancelable leases for premises and equipment many of

which provide for increased rentals based upon increases in real estate taxes and cost of living These leases most of which

have renewal provisions are considered operating leases Minimum rentals under the terms of these leases for the years 2012

through 2016 are $324000 $321000 $329000 $50000 and $0 respectively

Rental expense under the leases amount to $372000 $817000 and $587000 during 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively 2010

included $115000 settlement payment for the early termination of leased property that was never occupied and an $85000

charge for early termination of lease agreements of two closed branches

Note 22 Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing

needs of its customers These financial instruments include lines of credit commitments to extend credit standby letters of

credit and could involve to varying degrees elements of credit risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated

financial statements

The Banks exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for

commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments The

Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet

instruments with credit risk

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established

in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require the payment of

fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not

necessarily represent future cash requirements The Bank evaluates each customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis

and the amount of collateral or other security obtained is based on managements credit evaluation of the customer

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of customer to third

party These guarantees are primarily issued to support borrowing arrangements and extend for up to one year The credit risk

involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers

Accordingly collateral is generally required to support the commitment

At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Bank had available mortgage commitments of $1.6 million and $23.1 million unused

commercial lines of credit of $8 million and $4 million and $1.3 million and $1 million of other loan commitments

respectively There were $23000 of financial standby letters of credit outstanding at December 31 2011 and $34000 at

December 31 2010 The decline in commitments occurred because the Corporation originated very few loans during 2011 and

concurrently allowed most commercial mortgage commitments to expire
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Note 23 Parent company information

Condensed financial statements of the parent company only are presented below

Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31

hi thousands 201 2010

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 28 33

Investment in subsidiary 28.834 32180

Due from subsidiary 598 826

Other assets 185

Total assets 29.645 33.044

Liabilities and stockholders equity

Other liabilities 550 824

Notes payable 5200 5200

Subordinated debt 4.124 4.124

Total liabilities 9.874 10.148

Stockholders equity 19.77 22.896

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 29.645 33044

Condensed Statement of Operations

Year Ended December

In thousands 201 2010 2009

Income

interest income --$

Other operating income 100 1.100 78

Dividends from subsidiaries 687

Interest from subsidiaries 49 288 361

lotal income 149 1.388 1.127

Expenses

Interest expense 399 406 439

Other operating expenses

Income tax benefit expense 84 358 IS

Total
expenses 317 766 457

Loss income before equitY iii undis

tributed loss income of

subsidiaries 168 622 670

Equity in undistributed loss of subsidiaries 13509 8079 8492
Net loss 677 7457 7.822
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2011 2010 2009

Operating activities

Net loss 3677 7457 7822
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to cash used in operating activities

Equity in undistributed loss of subsidiaries 3509 8079 8492

Increase decrease in other assets 180 188 306

Decrease increase in other liabilities 274 360 77
Net cash used in provided by operating activities 622 1170 899

Investing activities

Decrease increase in investment in
11

suoslulanmi .oJ t1LJ
Decrease in loans to

subsidiaries 228 4174 75

Net caah provided by used in investing

activities 615 547 8850

Financing activities

Decrease innotes payable 100 100

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 9439

Issuance purchases of treasury stock

Dividends paid 490 1417

Net cash provided by used in finaiiing actiVities 590 7919

Decrease increase in cash and

cash equivalents 33 32
Cash and cash equivaleits at

binninf yat 33 32

Cash and cash equivalents at

end of year 28 33

Note 24 Regulatory capital requirements

FDIC regulations require banks to maintain minimum levels of regulatory capital Under the regulations in effect at

December 31 2011 the Bank was required to maintain minimum leverage ratio of Tier capital to total average assets of

4.0% and ii minimum ratios of Tier and total capital to risk-adjusted assets of 4.0% and 8.0% respectively

Under its prompt corrective action regulations the FDIC is required to take certain supervisory actions and may take additional

discretionary actions with respect to an undercapitalized bank Such actions could have direct material effect on such banks

financial statements The regulations establish framework for the classification of banks into five categories well-capitalized

adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized Generally bank is

considered well-capitalized if it has leverage capital ratio of at least 5.0% Tier risk-based capital ratio of at least 6.0% and

total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.0%

The foregoing capital ratios are based in part on specific quantitative measures of assets liabilities and certain off-balance sheet

items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative

judgments by the FDIC about capital components risk adjustments and other factors

The Bank was subject to the Formal Agreement with the 0CC which required among other things the enhancement and

implementation of certain programs to reduce the Banks credit risk along with the development of capital and profit plan the

development of contingency funding plan and the correction of deficiencies in the Banks loan administration The Bank

failed to comply with certain provisions of the Formal Agreement and failed to comply with the higher leverage ratio of 8%

required to be maintained

Due to the Banks condition the 0CC has required that the Bank enter into the Consent Order of December 22 2010 with the

0CC which contains list of requirements The Consent Order supersedes and replaces the Formal Agreement The Consent

Order is summarized in Note The Consent Order among other things requires that by March 31 2011 and thereafter the

Bank must maintain total capital at least equal to 13% of risk-weighted assets and Tier capital at least equal to 9% of adjusted

total assets This requirement means that the Bank is not considered well-capitalized as otherwise defined in applicable

regulations
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The following is summary of City National Bank of New Jerseys actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31 2011

and 2010 compared to the FDIC minimum capital adequacy requirements and the FDIC requirements for classification as

well-capitalized Bank

In thousands FDIC Requirements

Minimum Capital For Classification

Bank Actual Adequacy Well-Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31 2011

Leverage Tier

capital 28295 794C/ 14.249 4.00Y 17.811 5.00

Risk-based capital

Tier 28.295 11.37 9.951 4.00 14.927 6.00

Total 31.501 12.66 19.902 8.00 24878 10.00

December 31 2010

Leverage Tier

capital 31775 7.45% 17t6l 4.00% 21.326 5.00%

Risk-based capital

Tier 31775 11.21 11339 4.00 17.009 6.00

Total 35.407 12.49 22.679 8.00 28.349 10.00

The Corporation was required to deconsolidate its investment in the subsidiary trust formed in connection with the issuance of

trust preferred securities in 2004 In July 2003 the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System instructed bank holding

companies to continue to include the trust preferred securities in their Tier capital for regulatory capital purposes until notice

is given to the contrary There can be no assurance that the Federal Reserve will continue to allow institutions to include trust

preferred securities in Tier capital for regulatory capital purposes

The deconsolidation of the subsidiary trust results in the Corporation reporting on its balance sheet the subordinated debentures

that have been issued from City National Bancshares Corporation to the subsidiary trust
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Note 25 Summary of quarterly financial information

unaudited

Dollars in thousands

except per share data

_thicon

First

Quarter

Note 26 Subsequent events

In February 2012 City National Bancshares Corporation deferred the payment of its regular quarterly cash dividend of

$117987 on its Series fixed-rate cumulative perpetual preferred stock issued to the U.S Treasury in connection with the

Corporations participation in the Treasurys TARP Capital Purchase Program

In addition the Corporation deferred its regularly scheduled quarterly interest payment of $31751 on its junior subordinated

debentures issued by the City National Bank of New Jersey Capital Statutory Trust II

Interest expense 1321

2011

Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter

4$1 37k 62
1275 1228 1140

1Jpt hrnn-p lncf\ hfnr incnmp

tax expense

Other operating income 637 618 645 1131

1543 1098 1317 354

Netincomeloss 1555 1117 1342 337

ir

Net income loss per share- 12.80 9.48 11.20 0.88

diluted

unaudited 2010

Dollars in thousands First Second Third Fourth

except per share data Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Interest expense 1998 1895 1839 1675

N$ ho lŁn
Provision for loan losses 1381 1010 2825 4271

Net impairment losses on

securities

bip ih44

Other operating expenses 3523 3665 4184 4683

Income tax expense benefit 15 53 74 218

Net income loss per share-

6.72 5.32 26.43 33.17

Basic net income per common share is calculated by dividing net income less dividends on preferred stock by the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding On diluted basis both net income and common shares outstanding are

adjusted to assume the conversion of the preferred stock if conversion is deemed dilutive For all periods presented the

assumption of the conversion would have been antidilutive
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The Series preferred stock and the junior subordinated debentures issued in favor of the Trust provide for cumulative

dividends and interest respectively Accordingly the Corporation may not pay dividends on any of its common or preferred

stock until the dividends on Series preferred stock and the interest on such debentures are paid-up currently Accordingly

dividends on the remaining series of preferred stock that were payable in February 2012 were not paid

39



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

City National Bancshares Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of City National Bancshares Corporation and subsidiary the Company as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years

in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of City

National Bancshares Corporation and subsidiary as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows

for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as going concern As

discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has entered into

consent order with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as going concern

Managements plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note The consolidated financial statements do not include any

adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

Is KPMG LLP

Short Hills New Jersey

May 25 2012
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The purpose of this analysis is to provide information relevant to understanding and assessing the results of operations for each

of the past three years and financial condition for each of the past two years for City National Bancshares Corporation and its

subsidiaries

Cautionary statement concerning forward iooking statements

This managements discussion and analysis contains forward looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Such statements are not historical facts and include expressions about managements

expectations about new and existing programs and products relationships opportunities and market conditions Such forward-

looking statements involve certain risks and uncertainties These include but are not limited to unanticipated changes in the

direction of interest rates effective income tax rates loan prepayment assumptions deposit growth the direction of the

economy in New Jersey and New York levels of asset quality continued relationships with major customers as well as the

effects of general economic conditions and legal and regulatory issues and changes in tax regulations Actual results may differ

materially from such forward

looking statements The Corporation assumes no obligation for updating any such forward looking statement at any time

Critical accounting policies and use of estimates

The Corporations accounting and reporting policies conform in all material respects to U.S generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP In preparing the consolidated financial statements management has made estimates judgments and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated statements of condition

and results of operations for the periods indicated Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates

Accounting policies are fundamental to understanding managements discussion and analysis of its financial condition and

results of operations The significant accounting policies are presented in Note to the consolidated financial statements

Policies on the allowance for loan losses security valuations and income taxes are considered to be critical as management is

required to make subjective and/or complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain and could be most subject to

revision as new information becomes available

The judgments used by management in applying the critical accounting policies discussed below may be affected by further

and prolonged deterioration in the economic environment which may result in changes to future financial results Specifically

subsequent evaluations of the loan portfolio in light of the factors then prevailing may result in significant changes in the

allowance for loan losses in future periods and the inability to collect on outstanding loans could result in increased loan losses

In addition the valuation of certain securities in the investment portfolio could be negatively impacted by illiquidity or

dislocation in marketplaces resulting in significantly depressed market prices or deterioration in credit quality thus leading to

further impairment losses

Allowance for loan losses impaired loans TDRs and OREO
The allowance for loan losses represents managements estimate of probable loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio

Determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses is considered critical accounting estimate because it requires

significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans

estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience and consideration of current economic

trends and conditions all of which may be susceptible to significant change Bank regulators as an integral part of their

examination process also review the allowance for loan losses Such regulators may require based on their judgments about

information available to them at the time of their examination that certain loan balances be charged off or require that

adjustments be made to the allowance for loan losses when their credit evaluations differ from those of management

Additionally the allowance for loan losses is determined in part by the composition and size of the loan portfolio which

represents the largest asset type on the consolidated statement of financial condition

The allowance for loan losses consists of four elements specific reserves for individually impaired credits reserves for

classified or higher risk rated loans reserves for non-classified loans and unallocated reserves Other than the specific

reserves the calculation of the allowance takes into consideration numerous risk factors both internal and external to the

Corporation including changes in loan portfolio volume the composition and concentrations of credit new market initiatives

migration to loss analysis and the amount of loan charge-offs among other quantitative and qualitative factors

Management performs formal quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses The analysis of the

allowance for loan losses has component for impaired loan losses and component for general loan losses Management has

defined an impaired loan to be loan for which it is probable based on current information that the Corporation will not collect

all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms of the agreement The Corporation defined the population of impaired

loans to be all nonaccrual loans with an outstanding balance of $100000 or greater and all loans subject to troubled debt

restructuring Impaired loans are individually assessed to determine that the loans carrying value is not in excess of the

estimated fair value of the collateral less cost to sell if the loan is collateral dependent or the present value of the expected

future cash flows if the loan is not collateral dependent Management performs detailed evaluation of each impaired loan and

generally reviews appraisals as part of the evaluation In addition management adjusts estimated fair value down to

appropriately consider recent market conditions and costs to dispose of any supporting collateral Determining the estimated fair
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value of underlying collateral and related costs to sell can be subjective in illiquid real estate markets and is subject to

significant assumptions and estimates Management employs independent third-party experts in appraisal preparations and

performs reviews to ascertain the reasonableness of updated appraisals Projecting the expected cash flows under troubled debt

restructurings is inherently subjective and requires among other things an evaluation of the borrowers current and projected

financial condition Actual results may be significantly different than projections and the established allowance for loan losses

on these loans and could have material effect on the Corporations financial results

Real estate acquired as result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as other real estate owned When the

Bank acquires other real estate owned it generally obtains current appraisal to substantiate the net carrying value of the asset

The asset is recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair value establishing new cost basis Holding costs and declines in

estimated fair value result in charges to expense after acquisition

Although management believes that the allowance for loan losses has been maintained at adequate levels to reserve for probable

losses inherent in its loan portfolio additions may be necessary if future economic and other conditions differ substantially from

the current operating environment Although management uses quantitative and qualitative information in its models the level

of the allowance for loan losses remains an estimate that is subject to significant judgment and short-term change

Investment security valuations and impairments

Management utilizes various inputs to determine the fair value of its investment portfolio To the extent they exist unadjusted

quoted market prices in active markets level or quoted prices of similar assets level are utilized to determine the fair

value of each investment in the portfolio In the absence of quoted prices and illiquid markets valuation techniques may be used

to determine fair value of any investments that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and

unobservable level Valuation techniques are based on various assumptions including but not limited to projected cash

flows discount rates rate of return adjustments for nonperformance and liquidity valuations of underlying collateral and

liquidation values significant degree of judgment is involved in valuing investments using level inputs The use of different

assumptions could have positive or negative effect on consolidated financial condition or results of operations

Management periodically evaluates if unrealized losses as determined based on the securities valuation methodologies

discussed above on individual securities classified as available for sale in the investment portfolio are considered to be other-

than-temporary The analysis of other-than-temporary impairment requires the use of various assumptions including but not

limited to the length of time an investments book value is greater than fair value the severity of the investments decline any

credit deterioration of the investment whether management intends to sell the security and whether it is more likely than not

that management will be required to sell the security prior to recovery of its amortized cost basis As result of the adoption of

new authoritative guidance under ASC Topic 320 InvestmentsDebt and Equity Securities on April 2009 debt

investment securities deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired are to be written down by the impairment related to the

estimated credit loss and the non-credit related impairment was recognized in other comprehensive income

City National Bank of New Jersey is member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System which consists of 12 regional Federal

Home Loan Banks As member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York FHLB-NY City National Bank is required

to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the FHLB-NY in an amount determined by membership investment

component and an activity-based investment component As of December 31 2011 City National Bank was in compliance

with its ownership requirement and held $951000 of FHLB-NY common stock In performing the quarterly evaluation of the

investment in FHLB-NY stock management reviews the most recent financial statements of the FHLB of New York and

determines whether there have been any adverse changes to its capital position as compared to the previous period In addition

management reviews the FHLB-NYs most recent Presidents Report in order to determine whether or not dividend has been

declared for the current reporting period Finally management obtains the credit rating of FHLB from an accredited credit

rating agency to ensure that no downgrades have occurred At December 31 2011 it was determined by management that the

Banks investment in FHLB stock was not impaired

Income taxes

The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year

and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entitys financial

statements or tax returns Judgment is required in assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in

the consolidated financial statements or tax returns Fluctuations in the actual outcome of these future tax consequences could

impact the consolidated financial condition or results of operations

In connection with determining the income tax provision reserve is maintained related to certain tax positions and strategies

that management believes contain an element of uncertainty Periodically management evaluates each tax position and strategy

to determine whether the reserve continues to be appropriate

The Corporation uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes Under this method deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using

enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be

recovered or settled If it is determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized valuation
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allowance is established Management considers the determination of this valuation allowance to be critical accounting policy

because of the need to exercise significant judgment in evaluating the amount and timing of recognition of deferred tax

liabilities and assets including projections of future taxable income These judgments and estimates are reviewed quarterly as

regulatory and business factors change valuation allowance for deferred tax assets may be required if the amounts of taxes

recoverable through loss carry-backs decline or if lower levels of future taxable income are projected Such valuation

allowance would he established and
any subsequent changes to such allowance would require an adjustment to income tax

expense that could adversely affect the Corporations operating results

The Corporation is presently attempting to raise additional capital capital raise may trigger change in control under

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code Generally Section 382 limits the utilization of an entitys net operating loss

carryforwards upon change of control If change of control is triggered it could result in loss of deductibility of portion

of the Corporations deferred tax asset

Executive summary

In 2011 we continued to face unprecedented challenges from the repercussions arising from the economic downturn While we

continue to incur losses they have decreased significantly due primarily to sharply reduced loan charge-offs and related loan

loss provisions although we continue to incur operating losses before consideration of the provision

Because asset quality is the major driver of our earnings and capital levels while nonperforming loan levels have risen the

reduced loan charge-offs represent significant milestone We have also added loan staff experienced in loan workout resulting

in more aggressive action in slowing the migration of past due loans and the collection of nonperforming loans

We have taken several steps to mitigate our losses most significantly closing branch and the discontinuance of our

supplemental executive and directors retirement plans We are also reviewing our remaining branch network for possible

additional closures or consolidation as well as exploring new affiliations which are expected to generate new sources of

revenue

In 2011 we received $500000 of awards from the U.S Treasurys Community Development Financial Institution CDFI
Fund while in 2010 we received $1.6 million The awards were based on the Banks lending efforts in qualifying lower income

communities and $257000 was recorded as yield enhancement on the related loans during 2011 There is no assurance that

we will receive similar awards in 2012

The primary source of the Corporations income comes from net interest income which represents the excess of interest earned

on earning assets over the interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities This income is subject to interest rate risk resulting from

changes in interest rates The most significant component of the Corporations interest-earning assets is the loan portfolio In

addition to the aforementioned interest rate risk the portfolio is subject to credit risk Certain components of the investment

portfolio are subject to credit risk as well

Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks declined from $7.2 million at the end of 2010 to $6 million at the end of 2011 while average cash and

due from banks was $8.1 million in both 2010 and 2011

Federal funds sold

Federal funds sold increased from $13.6 million at the end of 2010 to $32.6 million at December 31 2011 while the related

average balance rose slightly from $29.5 million in 2010 to $31.1 million in 2011 The higher year-end balance was due to

higher planned liquidity position

Interest-bearing deposits with banks

Interest-bearing deposits with banks decreased from $3.3 million at December 31 2010 to $1.9 million year later while the

related
average balances were $2.1 million in 2011 and $1.5 million in 2010 The deposits represent the Banks participation in

the CDFI deposit program Under this program the Bank is eligible for awards based on deposits made in other CDFIs

representing yield enhancement on the CDFI deposits In 2011 $224000 of such income was recorded as interest income

from interest-bearing deposits with banks while $24000 was recorded in 2010 and $42000 was recorded in 2009

Investments

The available for sale AFS portfolio decreased to $95.1 million at December 31 2011 from $105.4 million year earlier

due primarily to maturities and principal payments that were not reinvested into the portfolio due to deleverage program

whereby the Corporation reduces the its asset size to improve capital ratios During the 2011 fourth quarter $6.3 million of

tax-exempt securities were sold as the Corporation does not expect to benefit from tax-exempt income for the foreseeable

future Purchases during 2011 were comprised solely of U.S government agency securities that are eligible as collateral for

municipal deposits

Additionally during the 2011 fourth quarter the Corporation sold $24.6 million of U.S government agency securities

recognizing gain of $989000 reinvesting the proceeds into U.S government agency securities The sale and reinvestment

was done primarily to improve capital ratios and from an interest rate risk standpoint was neutral
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The related pre-tax unrealized loss was $173000 at the end of 2010 compared to an unrealized gain of $423000 at the end of

2011 due to the lower interest rate environment in 2011 which had positive impact on our portfolio

Included in the AFS portfolio are two collateralized debt obligations CDOs that are comprised of pools of trust preferred

securities issued primarily by banks that have book value of $1036000 and market value of $467000 The unrealized loss

of $569000 is included in Other Comprehensive Income OCI $584000 of this loss pertains to one CDO which continues

to be fully performing and has substantial excess collateral coverage in the tranche we own The market value of this security

has been negatively impacted by illiquidity in the overall CDO market as well as losses sustained in the underlying collateral

No impairment losses were recorded on either of the CDOs during 2011

Additionally the available for sale portfolio includes two corporate debt securities with carrying value of $1.9 million that

have an unrealized loss of $300000 All of the investments continue to perform

Finally the Bank owns six single-issue trust preferred securities issued by individual financial institutions with carrying value

of $4.5 million and an unrealized loss of $1.2 million No impairment losses have been incurred on these securities which are

current as to the payment of interest and mostly investment grade

Management dnes nct believe that
any
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impairment Additionally the Corporation does not have the intent to sell these securities and it is more likely than not that the

Corporation will not be required to sell the securities

The Bank transferred its entire held to maturity HTM portfolio to AFS in March 2010 This transfer was made in

conjunction with the deleveraging program to reduce total asset levels in order to improve capital ratios and improve liquidity

by allowing for the disposition of securities if necessary In December 2010 we sold securities with book value of $46.1

million recognizing gain of $1.4 million and concurrently paid off $26.5 million in Federal Home Loan Bank advances

incurring prepayment penalty of $694000 We also reinvested $28 million into new securities resulting in reduction in total

assets of approximately $26.5 million

The average yield on the AFS portfolio declined to 3.34% at December 31 20l1 from 4.14% at December 31 2010 The

reduced yield was due to the lower yields earned on newly acquired investments placed in the portfolio during 2011 along with

the sale of securities during the year that had relatively high yields The weighted average life of the AFS portfolio was 5.70

years at the end of 2011 compared to 6.58 years year earlier due to the purchase of shorter-term securities to limit interest rate

risk exposure in rates-up environment

Due largely to illiquidity in various segments of the fixed income markets valuations have became more subjective requiring

alternate methods of valuation aside from quoted trade prices which often represent distressed sales prices Such methods

included underlying collateral valuations and discounted cash flow analyses often producing higher calculated valuations than

the quoted trade prices Illiquidity in these markets also has negative effect on such quotations Finally credit weakness of

various issuers also has significant negative impact on valuations As result the services of third-party consultants were

utilized in the valuation process These consultants prepared discounted cash flow analyses for the CDOs and analyzed the

default probabilities of underlying issuers in the Corporations CDO portfolio in order to determine the fair values of such

securities

Loans

Loans declined to $208.7 million at December 31 2011 from $245 million at December 31 2010 while average loans in 2011

decreased to $227.4 million from $261.7 in 2010 The decline resulted primarily from paydowns and principal payments which

were not replaced by new loans as the Bank is presently originating very few loans which are primarily to existing customers

We expect to resume originations as well as purchases in the secondary market in 2012 and will diversify the concentration in

commercial real estate CRE loans by seeking commercial or residential mortgage loans as well as consumer credit This

will improve our concentration ratios which will remain high and even increase as our total portfolio is shrinking and capital

levels are declining due to operating losses

At December 31 2011 the Bank had concentration in CRE loans including concentrations of loans to churches and loan

participations with third-party commercial real estate lender in New York City both of which are experiencing credit quality

problems and represent significant components of the Banks nonperforming loans Loans to churches totaled $57.5 million at

December 31 2011 representing 27.6% of total loans outstanding generally all of which were secured by real estate compared

to $62.8 million and 25.6% at December 31 2010 Participations with the third-party lender totaled $11.6 million of which

$8 million were construction loans Both types of loans are generally secured by commercial real estate the appraised values of

which have suffered large declines during the current economic downturn Accordingly both types of loans currently have

generally higher loan-to-value ratios than when they were originated which has been factored into the methodology for

determining the allowance for loan losses

Residential mortgage loans including home equity loans represent an insignificant part of the Banks lending portfolio

Consumer loans including automobile loans also comprise relatively small part of the portfolio Most of the Banks lending

efforts are in Northern New Jersey New York City and Nassau County
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The Bank generally secures its loans by obtaining first mortgage liens on real estate both residential and commercial and does

virtually no asset-based financing Without additional side collateral the Bank generally requires maximum loan-to-value ratios

that do not exceed 70% for loan transactions secured by commercial real estate at the time of origination If loan is

performing appraisals are performed when the loan renews if there is renewal date and if nonperforming appraisals are

generally performed annually

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is critical accounting policy and is maintained at level determined by management to be

adequate to provide for inherent losses in the loan portfolio The allowance is increased by provisions charged to operations and

recoveries of loan charge-offs The allowance is based on managements evaluation of the loan portfolio and several other

factors including past loan loss experience general business and economic conditions concentration of credit and the

possibility that there may be inherent losses in the portfolio that cannot currently be identified Although management uses the

most appropriate information available the level of the allowance for loan losses remains an estimate that is subject to

significant judgment and short-term changes

Management maintains the allowance for credit losses at level estimated to absorb probable loan losses of the loan portfolio at

the balance sheet date The allowance is based on ongoing evaluations of the probable estimated losses inherent in the loan

portfolio The methodology for evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance includes segmentation of the loan portfolio into

its various components tracking the historical levels of classified loans and delinquencies applying economic outlook factors

assigning specific incremental reserves where necessary providing specific reserves on impaired loans and assessing the nature

and trend of loan charge-offs Additionally the volume of non-performing loans concentration risks by size and type collateral

adequacy and economic conditions are taken into consideration

The allowance established for probable losses on specific loans is based on regular analysis and evaluation of classified loans

Loans are classified based on an internal credit risk grading process that evaluates among other things the obligors ability

to repay ii the underlying collateral if any and iii the economic environment and the industry in which the borrower

operates Specific valuation allowances are determined by analyzing the borrowers ability to repay amounts owed collateral

deficiencies the relative risk grade of the loan and economic conditions affecting the borrowers industry among other things

Additionally nonaccrual loans over specific dollar amount are individually evaluated along with all troubled debt

restructured loans for impairment based on the underlying anticipated method of payment consisting of either the expected

future cash flows or the related collateral If payment is expected solely based on the underlying collateral an appraisal is

completed to assess the fair value of the collateral Collateral dependent impaired loan balances are written down to the current

fair value of each loans underlying collateral resulting in an immediate charge-off to the allowance If repayment is based upon

future expected cash flows the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loans original effective

interest rate is compared to the carrying value of the loan and any shortfall is recorded as specific valuation allowance in the

allowance for credit losses

The allowance allocations for non-impaired loans are calculated by applying loss factors by specific loan types to the applicable

outstanding loans and unfunded commitments Loss factors are based on the Banks loss experience and may be adjusted for

significant changes in the quality of the current loan portfolio that in managements judgment affect the collectability of the

portfolio as of the evaluation date

The allowance contains reserves identified as unallocated to cover inherent losses in the loan portfolio which have not been

otherwise reviewed or measured on an individual basis Such reserves include managements evaluation of the regional

economy loan portfolio volumes the composition and concentrations of credit credit quality and delinquency trends These

reserves reflect managements attempt to ensure that the overall allowance reflects margin for judgmental factors and the

uncertainty that is inherent in estimates of probable credit losses

On quarterly basis management performs an evaluation of the methodology in calculating the allowance which may result in

revisions to the loss factors for various types of loans

During 2011 both commercial and real estate loan balances have declined considerably continuing trend that began in 2010

and 2009 with respect to real estate loans The credit quality of this segment of the portfolio deteriorated earlier and at faster

pace than other portfolio segments and also represent concentration of capital As result aggressive action was implemented

in 2010 including write-downs and charge-offs to the extent that the required provision fell from $5.2 million in 2010 to $1.7

million in 2011

The allowance represented 5.21% of total loans at December 31 2011 and 4.34% at December 31 2010 while the allowance

represented 24.58% of total nonperforming loans at December 31 2011 compared to 27.77% at the end of 2010 due to an

increase in nonperforming loans The increase in the allowance as percentage of total loans occurred due to the lack of

originations in 2011 resulting in decline in the overall portfolio The allowance at December 31 2011 rose nominally from

December 31 2010 due to significant drop in charge-offs and the loan loss provision exceeding net chargeoffs for 2012
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Nonperforming loans

Nonperforming assets rose to $45.8 million at the end of 2011 due primarily to increasingly higher levels of nonaccruing

commercial real estate loans The commercial real estate portfolio continues to be stressed by the effects of the economic

recession in the Banks trade area which has been affected later than the rest of the country and is expected to recover later as

well The deterioration in credit quality in the overall portfolio since the end of 2009 has occurred primarily in two segments of

the loan portfolio comprised of loans acquired from third-party non-bank lender located in New York City and loans made to

churches Both categories are considered commercial real estate loans

Included in the portfolio are loans to churches totaling $57.5 million and loans acquired from the third-party lender totaling

$10.4 million compared to $62.8 million and $17.6 million at the end of 2010 Nonaccrual loans includes $8 million of loans

to religious organizations which management believes have been impacted by reductions in tithes and collections from

congregation members due to the weak economy and $8 million of loans acquired from the third-party non-bank lender

Church loans located in the State of New York may require significantly longer collection periods because approval is required

by the State of New York before the underlying property may be encumbered Nonaccrual loans to churches located in New

York totaled $4.9 million at December 31 2011
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of the allowance for loan losses amounted to $1.5 million due to shortfall in collateral values Impaired loans totaling

$3 6.7 million had no specific reserves at December 31 2011 due to the net realizable value of the underlying collateral

exceeding the carrying value of the loan Impaired loan charge-offs totaled $2.2 million in 2011 .There was no interest income

recognized on impaired loans during 2011

Included in impaired loans are loans to churches totaling $9.6 million with related allowance of $545000 Additionally

impaired loans includes $8 million of construction loan participations acquired from the third-party lender with related

allowance of $346000 The average balance of impaired loans in 2011 was $38.9 million compared to $24.2 million in 2010

Most of the impaired loans are secured by commercial real estate properties

Troubled debt restructured loans TDRs totaled $5.7 million with related allowance of $11 000 at December 31 2011

and included eight borrowers TDRs to five borrowers amounting to $4 million are accruing The remainder are on nonaccrual

status due to delinquent payments All TDRs are included in the balance of impaired loans

Other assets

Other assets rose to $13.3 million at the end of 2011 compared to $10.8 million year earlier with the increase resulting

primarily from investment securities purchased prior to December 31 2011 that did not settle until January 2012

Other real estate owned

Other real estate owned OREO was lower due to writedowns of foreclosed properties although balances are expected to rise

as nonaccrual loans move through the foreclosure process

Deposits

The Banks deposit levels may change significantly on daily basis because deposit accounts maintained by municipalities

represent significant part of the Banks deposits and may be more volatile than commercial or retail deposits

These municipal and U.S Government accounts represent substantial part of the Banks business tend to have high balance

relationships and comprise most of the Banks accounts with balances of $250000 or more at December 31 2011 and 2010

These accounts are used for operating and short-term investment purposes by the municipalities and require collateralization

with readily marketable U.S Government securities or Federal Home Loan Bank of New York municipal letters of credit Prior

to 2010 we also held short-term municipal investment time deposits but no longer offer such accounts

While the collateral maintenance requirements associated with the Banks municipal and U.S Government account

relationships might limit the ability to readily dispose of investment securities used as such collateral management does not

foresee any need for such disposal and in the event of the withdrawal of any of these deposits these securities are readily

marketable or available for use as collateral for repurchase agreements

Changes in all deposit categories discussed below were caused by fluctuations in municipal deposit account balances unless

otherwise indicated

Total deposits declined to $299.3 million at December 31 2011 from $338.6 million year earlier while average deposits

decreased to $329.8 million in 2011 from $372.8 million in 2010 Both reductions resulted from the deleveraging program with

the most significant declines occurring in municipal time deposits which fell from $117.8 million at December 31 2010 to

$91.3 million year later and brokered deposits which declined from $49.7 million at the end of 2010 to $30 million year

later Brokered deposit levels are expected to decline another $12.1 million during 2012 due to maturity runoff as the Bank is

precluded from issuing or renewing such deposits under the Consent Order
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Passbook and statement savings deposits totaled $22.7 million at December 31 2011 compared to $23 million year earlier

while such savings accounts averaged $22.8 million in 2011 compared to $24.2 million in 2010 The declines resulted primarily

from closings of decedents accounts

Money market deposit accounts declined to $44.2 million at December 31 2011 from $61.9 million year earlier while

average money market deposits decreased to $55.2 million in 2011 from $65.6 million in 2010

Interest-bearing demand deposit account balances rose slightly to $47.7 million at the end of 2011 compared to $45.7 million at

year-end 2010 while the related average balance of $45 million in 2011 declined from the average of $60.5 million in 2010

Time deposits declined to $147.2 million at December 31 2011 from $172.8 million at the end of 2010 while average time

deposits were $164.4 million in 2011 compared to an average of $187.4 million in 2010 The declines occurred due to $19.7

million reduction in brokered deposits

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

This category rose due to $15.1 million liability recorded for the purchase of an investment security that did not settle until

January 2012

Short-term borrowings

There were no short-term borrowings at either December 31 2011 or 2010 while average short-term borrowings were nominal

during both 2011 and 2010

Long-term debt

Long-term debt of $19.2 million at December 31 2011 was unchanged from year earlier while the related average balance

was $19.2 million in 2011 compared to $46.9 million in 2010 The decline resulted from prepayment of $26.5 million of

Federal Home Loan Bank advances in December 2010 in conjunction with deleveraging program

Results of operations 2011 compared with 2010

The Corporation recorded net loss of $3.7 million in 2011 compared to loss of $7.5 million year earlier due to drop in

the provision for loan losses from $9.5 million to $3 million offset in part by lower net interest income and other operating

income Our earnings continue to be negatively impacted by elevated credit costs and expenses incurred to remediate the

Consent Order

Included in both years earnings was award income received from the CDFI Fund The awards were based primarily on the

Banks lending efforts in qualifying lower-income communities Award income attributable to its lending efforts and recorded

as yield enhancements totaled $257000 in 2011 $321000 in 2010 and $386000 in 2009 in addition to $600000 of such

income included in Other income that was not considered yield enhancement The Bank also recorded award income related

to time deposits made in other CDFIs of $224000 in 2011 $24000 in 2010 and $42000 in 2009

Finally the Bank recorded award income of $71000 in 2009 as recovery of approved information technology-related costs

No such income was recorded in 2010 or 2011 In total $1.1 million of award income was recorded in 2011 while $1.6 million

was recorded in 2010 and $499000 was recorded in 2009

These awards are dependent on the availability of funds in the CDFI Fund as well as the Corporation meeting various qualifying

standards Accordingly there is no assurance that the Corporation will continue to receive these awards in the future although

as CDFI our day-to-day business efforts are expected to provide opportunities to qualify for these awards However the

Corporation has received various awards under these programs on regular basis as follows over the past five years 2011

$500000 2010 $1.6 million 2009 $700000 2008 $1.2 million and 2007 $542000 The Corporation expects to continue

to apply for these awards

On fully taxable equivalent FTE basis net interest income of $13.2 million in 2010 declined to $10 million in 2011 while

the related net interest margin declined nine basis points from 3.04% to 2.95% The reduced net interest margin occurred due

to several factors as discussed below

Interest income on FTE basis declined from $20.6 million in 2010 to $15.1 million in 2011 due to several factors The

continued low interest rate environment had significant impact because reinvestment of investment portfolio runoff was

reinvested into the portfolio at lower rates In order to enhance liquidity much of the runoff in both the loan and investment

portfolios was reinvested into Federal funds sold at minimal interest rates Also there were few new loan originations further

reducing our opportunities for generating spread income Additionally earning asset levels dropped during 2011 due to

deleveraging Finally nonaccrual loan balances went up further reducing interest income The yield on interest earning assets

fell 41 basis points from 4.74% to 4.33% Average balance reductions occurred in both investments and loans and rates

declined in all asset categories except for interest-bearing deposits with banks where the rate rose because of income recorded

as yield enhancement
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Interest income from Federal funds sold was lower in 2011 due to lower average rate earned The low yield resulted from the

Federal Reserve Banks Federal Open Market Committees ongoing decision to leave the Federal funds target rate at range of

0% to .25%

Interest income on taxable investment securities decreased in 2011 due to lower average rate which declined from 4.28% to

3.92% as well as lower average balance Tax-exempt investment income also fell due primarily to the sale of tax-exempt

securities that were no longer beneficial to the Corporation because of net operating losses

Interest income on loans declined due to lower average rate earned which decreased from 5.41% to 4.97% and sharply

reduced loan volume as few loans were originated during 2011 The lower yield was caused by the low interest rate

environment along with the loss of interest from nonaccrual loans

Interest expense declined sharply in 2011 as the average rate paid to fund interest-earning assets decreased from .70% to

1.38% This decline was due to the lower rates paid on deposits The most significant reduction occurred in interest expense on

time deposits which declined $1.2 million in 2011 Additionally all interest-bearing liabilities had volume reductions
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largely from federal opt-out rules implemented in 20i0 ATM fees were lower asaresult of reducing the number of ATMsin

our network Undistributed income from unconsolidated subsidiaries was higher due to greater leasing activity by minority

leasing company in which we hold minority interest

Award income was lower in 2011 due to reduction in federal funding available for the award program

Net gains on securities transactions declined due to managements decision to limit the amount of such gains to capital

improvement transaction compared to 2010 when we completed major deleverage transaction

Salaries and other employee benefits expense rose 4.4% in 2011 as head count declined from 89 full-time equivalent employees

at the end of 2010 to 86 year later due to branch closings and departmental restructuring Almost all of the salary increase

resulted from vacation and severance pay packages for officers who left the Bank during 2011 Health insurance expense was

down due to less covered employees during the year

Both occupancy and equipment expense were lower due to branch closings Management consulting fees rose 27.8% in 2011

due to the retention of consultants to assist in complying with the terms of the Consent Order along with the outsourcing of the

internal audit and compliance functions

Both OREO expense and foreclosure costs rose due to higher writedowns of foreclosed properties in 2011 as well as increased

carrying costs of foreclosed properties 2010 included charges for $694000 prepayment penalty on the prepayment of Federal

Home Loan Bank advances and $696000 of charges related to the closing of two branch offices including the charge-off of

$468000 of core deposit intangible that did not recur in 2011

Other expenses were down 33.7% in 2011 due primarily to lower appraisal fees and directors fees which cannot be paid under

the terms of the Consent Order

Income tax expense in 2011 was mostly related to state tax expense on income from an investment subsidiary as tax benefits

resulting from losses were restricted by valuation allowances These deferred benefits will not be recovered until the

Corporation can demonstrate the ability to generate future taxable income

The Corporation is in process of attempting to raise capital Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code limits the utilization of

an entitys net operating loss carryforwards and general business credits in the event change in control is triggered

Liquidity

The liquidity position of the Corporation is dependent on the successful management of its assets and liabilities so as to meet

the needs of both deposit and credit customers Liquidity needs arise primarily to accommodate possible deposit outflows and to

meet borrowers requests for loans Such needs can be satisfied by investment and loan maturities and payments along with the

ability to raise short-term funds from external sources

Continued asset quality deterioration and operating losses could create significant stress on sources of liquidity including

limiting access to funding sources and requiring higher discounts on collateral used for borrowings Accordingly the

Corporation has implemented contingency funding plan currently in use which provides detailed procedures to be instituted

in the event of liquidity crisis

The Bank depends primarily on deposits as source of funds and prior to the Consent Order also provided for portion of its

funding needs through short-term borrowings such as the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB Federal Funds purchased

securities sold under repurchase agreements and borrowings under the U.S Treasury tax and loan note option program The

Bank also utilizes the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank discount window for longer-term funding

purposes All the Banks borrowings must be collateralized
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significant part of the Banks deposit base is from municipal deposits which comprised $91.3 million or 30.5% of total

deposits at December 31 2011 compared to $105.8 million or 31.2% of total deposits at December 31 2010 These

relationships arise due to the Banks urban market leading to municipal deposit relationships $36.7 million of investment

securities were pledged as collateral for these deposits along with $38.3 million in Federal Home Loan Bank letters of credit all

of which require collateralization As result of the large size of these individual deposit relationships these municipalities

represent potentially volatile source of liquidity although they have historically been stable source of deposits

Illiquidity in certain segments of the investment portfolio may limit the Corporations ability to dispose of various securities

although management believes that the Corporation has sufficient resources to meet all of its liquidity demands Should the

market for these and similar types of securities such as single issuer trust preferred securities continue to deteriorate or should

credit weakness develop additional illiquidity could occur within the investment portfolio

Municipal deposit levels may fluctuate significantly depending on the cash requirements of the municipalities The Bank

maintains significant Federal funds balances and has ready sources of available short-term borrowings in the event that the

municipalities have unanticipated cash requirements Such sources include Federal funds lines FHLB advances and access to

the repurchase agreement market utilizing the collateral for the withdrawn deposits In certain instances however these lines

may be reduced or not available in the event of significant decline in the Banks credit quality or capital levels

As result of the loss incurred there were no significant sources of funds during 2011 from operating activities

Net cash provided by investing activities during 2011 was derived primarily from proceeds from sales of investment securities

available for sale amounting to $31.9 million and proceeds from loan payoffs and payments totaling $30.6 million while the

primary use of cash was for purchases of investment securities available for sale which amounted to $40.7 million

There were no significant sources of cash provided by financing activities while the most significant uses of funds was an

outflow of $39.3 million of deposits resulting from the runoff of $20 million in brokered deposits and the deleveraging

program

As result of the aforementioned Consent Order the Corporation has implemented contingency funding plan which provides

detailed procedures to be instituted in the event of liquidity crisis The plan provides for among other things the sale of

Bank-owned properties at distressed prices in the event of crisis situation where the Bank would be unable to meet its funding

obligations on timely basis This situation has not yet occurred where we would have to sell Bank-owned properties

Interest rate sensitivity

The management of interest rate risk is also important to the profitability of the Corporation Interest rate risk arises when an

earning asset matures or when its interest rate changes in time period different from that of supporting interest bearing

liability or when an interest bearing liability matures or when its interest rate changes in time period different from that of an

earning asset that it supports While the Corporation does not match specific assets and liabilities total earning assets and

interest bearing liabilities are grouped to determine the overall interest rate risk within number of specific time frames

It is the responsibility of the Asset/Liability Management Committee ALCO to monitor and oversee the activities of interest

rate sensitivity management and the protection of net interest income from fluctuations in interest rates as well as to monitor

liquidity

Interest sensitivity analysis attempts to measure the responsiveness of net interest income to changes in interest rate levels The

difference between interest sensitive assets and interest sensitive liabilities is referred to as interest sensitive gap At any given

point in time the Corporation may be in an asset-sensitive position whereby its interest-sensitive assets exceed its interest-

sensitive liabilities or in liability-sensitive position whereby its interest-sensitive liabilities exceed its interest-sensitive

assets depending on managements judgment as to projected interest rate trends

One measure of interest rate risk is the interest-sensitivity analysis which details the repricing differences for assets and

liabilities for given periods The primary limitation of this analysis is that it is static i.e as of specific point in time

measurement that does not capture risk that varies nonproportionally with changes in interest rates Because of this limitation

the Corporation uses simulation model as its primary method of measuring interest rate risk This model because of its

dynamic nature forecasts the effects of different patterns of rate movements on the Corporations mix of interest sensitive

assets and liabilities

The following table presents the Corporations sensitivity to changes in interest rates categorized by repricing period Various

assumptions are used to estimate expected maturities The actual maturities of these instruments could vary substantially if

future prepayments differ from estimated experience Additionally assets and liabilities reprice at different rates so that gaps

may not represent an accurate assessment of interest rate risk
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Interest Sensitivity Gap Analysis

December 31 2011

One Year Three Years

One Year to to More than

In thousands Or Less Three Years Five Years Five Years Total

Interest eariing assets

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell 32600 32600

Interest-bearing deposits with banks 340 1600 1940

Investment securities 1304 356 93398 95058

Loatss 98575 65357 18061 26722 2O8fl5

131515 68261 18417 120120 338313

Interest bearing liabilities

Savings 114675 114075

Time 84945 46944 14871 457 147217

Long-term debt 19200 19200

_______________________________ 199620 4944 14fi 19057 2192

Interest sensitivity gap

68I05 3346 10046 .t 57221

Cumulative gap 68105 46788 43242 57221 57221

The cumulative gap between the Corporations interest rate sensitive assets and its interest rate sensitive liabilities at the one-

year interval was $68.l million at December 31 2011 compared to $80.2 million December 31 2010 This means that the

Corporation had negative gap position at the one-year interval which theoretically will cause its interest-bearing liabilities

to reprice faster than its interest-earning assets However interest sensitive assets and liabilities reprice at different speeds than

yield curve changes Based on the above model which reflects static interest rate environment and does not take into

consideration that repricing may occur at different speeds in rising interest rate environment interest income may be expected

to rise slower than the interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities thus reducing the net interest spread Subsequent to the one-

year time horizon however the gap is positive and remains positive in all periods listed thereafter If interest rates decreased

the net interest received on earning assets will decline slower than the interest paid on the Corporations liabilities increasing

the net interest spread

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of gap analysis presented above Although certain assets and liabilities may
have similar maturities or periods of repricing they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates The rates

on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market rates while rates on other types of assets

and liabilities may lag behind changes in market rates In the event of change in interest rates prepayment and early

withdrawal levels could deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table The ability of borrowers to service

debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase Management considers these factors when reviewing its sensitivity

gap position and establishing its ongoing asset/liability strategy

Because individual interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities respond differently to changes in the prime rate more

refined results are obtained when simulation model is used The Corporation uses simulation model to analyze earnings

sensitivity to movements in interest rates The simulation model projects earnings based on parallel shifts in interest rates over

twelve-month period The model is based on the actual maturity and re-pricing characteristics of rate sensitive assets and

liabilities and incorporates various assumptions which management believes to be reasonable

At December 31 2011 the most recently prepared model indicates that net interest income would increase 1.79% from base

case scenario if interest rates rise 200 basis points and decline 14.59% if rates decrease 200 basis points Additionally the

economic value of equity would rise 13.86% if rates rise 200 basis points and decrease 25.12% if rates decline 200 basis points

These results indicate that the Corporation is liability-sensitive meaning that the interest rate risk is higher if interest rates rise

which management does not expect to occur during the near term based on the recent actions and public announcements by the

Federal Reserve Board of Governors

Capital

The following table presents the consolidated and bank-only capital components and related ratios as calculated under

regulatory accounting practice
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Dollars in thousands

Total stoctowiiders equity

4000 4000

5200

315 3555

80 80

S5
35708

426797

Bank Only

December 31

126 32
80 80

31501 35407

248775 283487

356223 426569

Almost all capital ratios were higher at December 31 2011 due to the deleveraging program that was undertaken in 2011 which

reduced assets

The Bank was subject to the Formal Agreement with the 0CC which required among other things the enhancement and

implementation of certain programs to reduce the Banks credit risk along with the development of capital and profit plan the

development of contingency funding plan and the correction of deficiencies in the Banks loan administration The Bank

failed to comply with certain provisions of the Formal Agreement and failed to comply with the higher leverage ratio of 9%

required to be maintained

Due to the Banks condition the 0CC has required that the Bank enter into the Consent Order of December 22 2010 with the

0CC which contains list of requirements The Order supersedes and replaces the Formal Agreement The Consent Order is

summarized in Item The Consent Order among other things requires that by March 31 2011 and thereafter the Bank must

maintain total capital at least equal to 13% of risk-weighted assets and Tier leverage capital at least equal to 9% of adjusted

total assets This requirement means that the Bank is not considered well-capitalized as otherwise defined in applicable

regulations

_______________________________
Consolidated

December 31

Net unrealized loss gain on investment securities available for sale

Hq una i1 1o8s 06 equity securities avaiiablefs

Disallowed intangibles

Qualifying tmst preferred securities

Tier O8pit8

2011 2010

197l 22896

423 126

19 13

97 136

Qualifying long-term debt

4B0w4006 lot loan oss6s

Other
________

Tier e8p1t41

2011

28834

423

19

97

.010

31798

126

13

136

__________ 28295 3175

5200

8405

Total capital 31637

11sltgtts 248677

Average total assets 356109

R1fbAapittMios

Tier capital to risk-adjusted assets Actual 9.34% 9.47% 11.37% 11.21%

M64txnçonid6rd td be well..cipitaflze4 600 6.00 OO 6.00

Minimum considered to be well-capitalized under 0CC requirements N/A N/A 10.00 10.00

total capital
to rgkadjsstesstgAqqai Ti.72 12.59 12.66 1249

Minimum considered to be well-capitalized 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Mlni9itssncqttti1ered to be we tapjt6ed tinder QCtequIremn4ts N/A N/A L1.0O 1Q0

Leverage ratio

Aptoal 6.52 6313 74 745

Minimum considered to be well-capitalized 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

ib166secierd to bg weU pitallz4 tp4q Qçquirenseb% N/A 9.00 8.00
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Results of operations 2010 compared with 2009

The Corporation recorded net loss of $7.5 million in 2010 compared to loss of $7.8 million year earlier due primarily to

lack of OTTI losses in 2010 higher award income and increased gains on sales of investment securities offset in part by

higher loan loss provision and increased credit costs and expenses
incurred to remediate the Consent Order

Included in both years earnings were awards received from the CDFI Fund The awards were based on the Banks lending

efforts in qualifying lower income communities Award income attributable to its lending efforts and recorded as yield

enhancements totaled $321000 in 2010 $386000 in 2009 and $421000 in 2008 in addition to $1 million of such income

included in Other income that was not considered yield enhancement The Bank also recorded award income related to time

deposits made in other CDFIs of $24000 in 2010 $42000 in 2009 and $- in 2008

Finally the Bank recorded award income of $71000 in 2009 and $18000 in 2008 as recovery of approved information

technology-related costs No such income was recorded in 2010

In total $1.6 million of award income was recorded in 2010 while $499000 was recorded in 2009 and $439000 was recorded

in 2008

These awards are dependent on the availability of funds in the CDFI Fund as well as the Corporation meeting various qualifying

standards Accordingly there is no assurance that the Corporation will continue to receive these awards in the future However

the Corporation has received various awards under these programs on regular basis as follows over the past five years 2010

$1.6 million 2009 $700000 2008 $1.2 million 2007 $542000 and 2006 $340000 The Corporation expects to continue

to apply for these awards

On fully taxable equivalent FTE basis net interest income of $13.2 million in 2010 declined from $15.3 million in 2009

while the related net interest margin declined eleven basis points from 3.15% to 3.04%

The reduced net interest margin occurred due largely to lost earnings on nonaccrual loans and to the average rate earned on

interest-earning assets declining more rapidly than the interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities which in turn was driven by

the effects of reinvesting loan and investment principal and interest payments in shorter-term earning assets in low interest

rate environment along with variable-rate loans and investments repricing at lower rates in the low interest rate environment

Interest income on FTE basis declined from $24.8 million in 2009 to $20.6 million in 2010 due both to reduction in the

average rate earned and decline in earning asset levels The yield on interest earning assets fell 36 basis points from 5.10% to

4.74% Average balance reductions occurred in almost all earning asset categories and rates declined in all asset categories

Interest income from Federal funds sold was lower in 2010 primarily due to decline in volume The low yield resulted from

the Federal Reserve Banks Federal Open Market Committees ongoing decision to leave the Federal funds target rate at range

of 0% to .25%

Interest income on taxable investment securities decreased in 2010 due to lower average rate which declined from 4.76% to

4.28% as well as lower average balance Tax-exempt investment income declined substantially due primarily to sale of tax-

exempt securities that were no longer beneficial to the Bank because of net operating losses

Interest income on loans declined due to lower average rate earned which decreased from 5.79% to 5.41% and reduced loan

volume The lower yield was caused by the low interest rate environment along with the foregone income from nonaccrual

loans

Interest expense declined in 2010 as the average rate paid to fund interest-earning assets decreased from 1.95% to 1.70% This

decline was due to the lower rates paid on all interest-bearing liabilities The most significant reduction occurred in interest

expense on time deposits which declined 22.1% in 2010 Almost all interest-bearing liabilities had volume reductions

Service charges on deposit accounts declined 10.6% in 2010 from 2009 due primarily to reduction in overdraft fees resulting

largely from federal opt-out rules implemented in 2010

Agency fees declined in 2010 as they have done in recent years due to elimination by large companies of the programs that

generate this source of income

Other income was up in 2010 due to $1 million CDFI Fund award recorded that was not considered yield enhancement

because the related loans were sold This increase was offset in part by lower income from off-site ATMs due to the elimination

of several of such ATMs

Other operating expenses which include expenses other than interest income taxes and the provision for loan losses totaled

$16.1 million in 2010 20% increase compared to $13.4 million in 2009 driven primarily by higher management consulting

fees $694000 prepayment penalty on the prepayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances and $696000 of charges related

to the closing of two branch offices including the charge-off of $468000 of core deposit intangible
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Salaries and other employee benefits expense was essentially unchanged in 2010 although head count declined from 103 full-

time equivalent employees at the end of 2009 to 89 year later due to branch closings These reductions were partially offset by

higher health insurance costs

Occupancy expense rose 23.8% in 2010 due to increased rent expense on leased branches that were closed prior to lease

expiration and higher property taxes while equipment expense declined due to the elimination of several service contracts

Management consulting fees rose 100.1% in 2010 due to the retention of consultants to assist in complying with the terms of the

Consent Order along with the outsourcing of the internal audit loan review and compliance functions

OREO expense declined due to lower foreclosed property writedowns in 2010 Amortization expense was higher due to the

aforementioned branch closing charge and the Federal Home Loan Bank
prepayment penalty resulted from the early advance

payoffs

Other expenses were up 21.4% in 2010 due primarily to higher appraisal fees and personnel agency costs

Income tax expense in 2010 was limited to state tax expense as federal income tax benefits were restricted by valuation

allowances which rose to $8.8 million at December 31 2010 compared to $4.7 million at the end of 2009 These deferred

benefits will not be recovered until the Corporation can demonstrate the ability to generate future taxable income
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